Public Document Pack

Gareth Owens LL.B Barrister/Bargyfreithiwr
Head of Legal and Democratic Services
Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd

To: ClIir Tim Newhouse (Chairman)

Councillors: Haydn Bateman, Marion Bateman,
Clive Carver, Peter Curtis, lan Dunbar,

Andy Dunbobbin, Ron Hampson, Ray Hughes,
Richard Jones, Richard Lloyd, Mike Lowe,
Paul Shotton, lan Smith and Arnold Woolley

Dear Sir / Madam

Sir y Fflint
-Flintshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

CS/NG
10 January 2014

Tracy Waters 01352 702331
tracy.waters@flintshire.gov.uk

A meeting of the CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY

COMMITTEE will be held in the DELYN COMMITTEE ROOM, COUNTY HALL,

MOLD CH7 6NA on THURSDAY, 16TH JANUARY, 2014 at 10.00 AM to consider

the following items.

Yours faithfully

P

Democracy & Governance Manager

AGENDA

1 APOLOGIES

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (INCLUDING WHIPPING

DECLARATIONS)

3 MINUTES (Pages 1 - 10)

To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on

12 December 2013.

County Hall, Mold. CH7 6NA

Tel. 01352 702400 DX 708591 Mold 4

www.flintshire.gov.uk

Neuadd y Sir, Yr Wyddgrug. CH7 6NR
Ffén 01352 702400 DX 708591 Mold 4

www.siryfflint.gov.uk

The Council welcomes correspondence in Welsh or English
Mae'r Cyngor yn croesawau gohebiaeth yn y Cymraeg neu'r Saesneg



IMPROVEMENT ASSESSMENT LETTER FROM THE AUDITOR GENERAL
FOR WALES (Pages 11 - 20)

Report of Chief Executive enclosed.

REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2013/14 (MONTH 7) (Pages 21 - 68)
Report of Head of Finance enclosed.

COUNCIL TAX REDUCTION SCHEME (Pages 69 - 82)
Report of Head of Finance enclosed.

COUNCIL TAX AND BUSINESS RATE POLICIES 2014-15 (Pages 83 - 90)
Report of Head of Finance enclosed.

FEEDBACK FROM CONSIDERATION OF IMPROVEMENT AND
PERFORMANCE PLANS (Pages 91 - 94)

Report of Member Engagement Manager enclosed.

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 95 - 98)
Report of Member Engagement Manager enclosed.




51.

52.

53.

Agenda Item 3

CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
12 DECEMBER 2013

Minutes of the meeting of the Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny
Committee of Flintshire County Council held in the Delyn Committee Room,
County Hall, Mold CH7 6NA on Thursday, 12 December 2013

PRESENT: Councillor Tim Newhouse (Chairman)
Councillors Haydn Bateman, Marion Bateman, Andy Dunbobbin, Mike Lowe,
Paul Shotton, lan Smith and Arnold Woolley

SUBSTITUTES:
Councillors: Joe Johnson for lan Dunbar, Carolyn Thomas for Ray Hughes and
Robin Guest for Richard Jones

APOLOGIES:
Cabinet Member for Corporate Management
Councillors: Clive Carver, Peter Curtis, Ron Hampson and Richard Lloyd

CONTRIBUTORS:

Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Finance, Chief Executive, Head of
Finance and Corporate Finance Manager

Head of ICT and Customer Services for minute number 53

Head of Human Resources and Organisational Development for minute nhumber
55

IN ATTENDANCE:
Member Engagement Manager and Committee Officer

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (INCLUDING WHIPPING DECLARATIONS)

No declarations of interest were made.
MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 14 November 2013
had been circulated to Members with the agenda.

RESOLVED:
That the minutes be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 2014/15 - 2018/19

The Leader of the Council introduced the report to provide Members with
an update on the Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) 2014/15 — 2018/19. He
explained that the report had been submitted to Cabinet in October 2013 and
included an updated MTFP as at 30 September 2013. Member workshops on
the 2014/15 budget were due to be held on 16 and 18 December 2013 with the
scrutiny budget meetings taking place in January 2014. The MTFP covered a
five year period but the focus was on the budget for 2014/15 and the financial
challenges that lay ahead. This was an opportunity for Members to have a clear

Page 1



understanding of the principles that underpinned the MTFP and the workshops
would allow Members to see how the principles had been applied.

The Head of Finance detailed the background to the report and explained
that the budget gap as projected at 30" September was £16.5m for 2014/15 and
£47m over the five year period of the MTFP. This had been affected by the level
of funding available to the Council, which was 80% from Welsh Government with
the remaining 20% being from Council Tax. The final settlement figure had been
received the previous day which indicated that the budget gap was now £15.1m.

The Corporate Finance Manager explained that prior to the settlement
being received the funding forecasts had been revised to assume a cash
reduction of 4% in both 2014/15 and 2015/16 and an assumed ‘cash flat’ position
for the following years. However the MTFP had subsequently been updated to
reflect the settlement figures and also a change to the collection rate for Council
Tax to 99% in line with the recent decision of Cabinet. It was reported that the
MTFP currently assumed grant levels remain the same as 2013/14 (£34.761m)
as no details of any significant changes had been received at this stage.

Within the grants figure was £1.4m which was linked to the achievement of
outcomes under the Outcome Agreement which the Council had with Welsh
Government. The Corporate Finance Manager advised that the MTFP assumed
that all outcomes would be achieved and that the Council would receive the full
grant settlement. Each year an assessment is needed to be made on the
inflationary increase required for service areas. A detailed exercise had been
carried out since May to target price inflationary increases to where there was a
business need only, rather than a flat increase across all service areas. The
effect of this was to reduce the inflation provision requirement for 2014/15 from
that previously assumed to £2.909m, a reduction of £1.118m. The Corporate
Finance Manager advised that no adjustment had been made at this stage for
future years and the table in the report detailed the assumptions currently made.

The full year effect of previous year budget decisions was required to be
adjusted to the base budget in order to ‘follow through’ the decisions made in
budgetary terms. For 2014/15 the impact for all Service Areas was an increase
in the budget requirement of £2.808m rising by a further £2.743m in 2015/16.
Costs within service areas were also reported which included an initial
assessment of additional costs of £0.300m which was included in the MTFP as at
May for the Council Tax Reduction Scheme to take account of caseload and the
increased cost of support linked to the assumed Council Tax rise. Details of
pressures for Leisure Services and Child Protection were also reported and the
projected shortfall in 2014/15 taking into account all of the adjustments reported
was now £15.1m.

The Chief Executive spoke about the budget Member workshops which
were to be held. He said that the £15.1m budget gap was a significant challenge
and that the MTFP document included information on the required Organisational
Change Strategy for 2013-17 to meet the efficiency and savings targets required.
He commented on efficiencies which had overall been successful in previous
years with the rate of efficiencies being 85% which had delivered over £20m of
savings over the last five years. The organisation needed to adapt its current

Page 2



work into a single and coherent strategy for modernisation, change and
prioritisation. The four parts of the strategy were:-

Corporate Efficiency

Functional Efficiency

Organisational Design — Structure and Operating Models
Organisational Design — Workforce

The Chief Executive said that the approach was different to previous years but
added that the Council did not have an option due to the challenging budget gap
and he spoke of considerations to protect local services as a first priority. The
reductions in staff levels would therefore reduce workforce costs but he added
that it was important to balance service need with requests for voluntary
redundancies. Work was advanced on proposals to lower costs which would be
shared with Members when it was available in the new year.

The Leader of the Council said that it was unlikely that there would be
growth in funding for some time but that the Council still had aspirations to
improve services. Options were being considered for the budget gap for future
years and discussions would be undertaken with the wider membership and
Committees in due course. On the issue of considerations for protection of
services, he said that there may be a need to deliver the services in a different
way and added the majority of services were currently delivered in-house.
Budgets for future years would be considered once the 2014/15 budget had been
finalised but he added that it was important to maintain capacity and capability.

Councillor Carolyn Thomas asked for clarification on what would be
discussed at the Member workshops. She referred to the change in the
collection rate for Council Tax but raised concern about the impact of the Council
Tax Reduction Scheme on the Council. She also raised concern as she felt that
some of the decisions in the MTFP had not been aligned to the Improvement
Priorities. Councillor Thomas also requested that Members be kept fully informed
of changes being proposed.

In response the Leader of the Council spoke of the workshops where more
details on the proposals in the MTFP such as Value for Money and service
efficiencies would be shared with Members. The Organisational Change
Strategy was from the top down and he said that workforce reductions would be
felt across the authority. He added that even though the MTFP was for five years
up to 2018/19, there would be a reorganisation of Local Government at the end of
that period. The Leader said that Flintshire did not have one central town and
that many services were replicated across many towns and added that there
would be obvious implications for North Wales and Flintshire County Council from
the Williams Commission.

The Chief Executive said that budget meetings would be scheduled for
January 2014 on ‘Value for Money work and would be an opportunity for
Members to consider the proposals. However, he added that details of workforce
reductions would need to be reported sensitively and that the scale and approach
of the proposals would be discussed at the workshops. On the issue of
Improvement Priorities referred to by Councillor Thomas, he said that they were
not just about money. He said that decision had not yet been made on phases

Page 3



three and four but added that County Hall was not affordable in the long term and
that it was important to make the best use of the space available.

On the issue of Council Tax, the Head of Finance explained the
background to the setting of the collection rate at 97.5% for 2013/14 due to the
proposed Council Tax Reduction Scheme. However, following a change in the
scheme by Welsh Government which provided assistance at up to 100% the
amount collected had been higher than expected. Whilst support of up to 100%
was available to eligible taxpayers, the funding from WG did not cover the full
cost of the scheme and so there was an ongoing pressure for the Council.

Councillor Robin Guest spoke of the workshops and said that he hoped
Members would attend the sessions. He said that the budget setting exercise
was different for this year but he felt that the term ‘Medium Term’ was a
contradiction as it could only apply for the short term. He concurred that
Flintshire was a county of small towns and communities and that it was important
to have an eye on the future to ensure the sustainable delivery of services.
Councillor Guest also referred to the demography of the Council and to the
implications for the Revenue Support Grant from Cardiff. He also asked what
percentage the authority spent on salaries or staff pay and in referring to
Capacity and Capability said that there was a need to get expert advice.
Councillor Guest also referred to the section about Child Protection and asked for
clarification on the marked increase in the demand for statutory child care
support.

In response, the Leader of the Council said that the funding formula was a
cause for concern and that the biggest impact was on population. He said that
for Flintshire going forward the population was not projected to increase and that
was a concern. He added that the issue of the Local Government Review had
been raised with the Minister and that there was a need to review the funding
formula sooner rather than later.

The Head of Finance said that the current formula had been in place since
2000 and that the formula, which was updated on an annual basis, was based on
a number of factors. Flintshire was 18™ or 19" out of the 22 Welsh Authorities.

In response to the issue of salary expenditure referred to by Councillor
Guest, the Corporate Finance Manager said that approximately half of the budget
was spent on staff salaries. The Chief Executive said that in the past there had
been some provision in the settlement figure for pay but this had not been the
case for some years. On the issue of capacity, it was important to use the help of
consultants where necessary and he highlighted points three and four of the
Organisational Change Strategy Programme on Workforce and Structure &
Operating Models. The issue of Contractors could be discussed at the Members
workshops. He said that there had been a significant rise in referrals to different
agencies on Child Protection issues but reminded Members that not all referrals
resulted in the need for statutory child care support. In referring to County Hall,
he confirmed that a decision had not yet been reached but that debate on the
issue could generate good ideas.

Page 4



54.

RESOLVED:

That the following be noted:-

i) the Medium Term Financial Plan as at 30 September 2013

ii) The Organisational Change and Re-Design Plan & Budget Strategy

iii) The approach to sharing the budget strategy and proposals with Members
over the coming three months.

REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2013/14 (MONTH 6)

The Corporate Finance Manager introduced a report to provide Members
with the revenue budget monitoring 2013/14 (Month 6) information for the Council
Fund and Housing Revenue Account (HRA) which was being submitted to
Cabinet on 17 December 2013.

For the Council Fund, the projected net in-year expenditure was reported
to be £1.012m less than the budget which was a decrease of £0.062m on the
£1.074m reported at Month 5 as reflected in the table at paragraph 3.01.

The main reasons for the changes related to two main areas, a reduction
in the projected underspend of £0.171m in Community Services, although this
was off set by by an improved position of £0.124m within Corporate Services.

Progress of the programme of efficiencies were detailed in paragraph 3.04
which currently indicated that £4.506m of the £5.331m included in the budget
(84.5%) would be achieved, resulting in a net under-achievement of £0.825m; full
details were provided in appendix 9.

Paragraph 4 detailed the amounts for pay inflation and non standard price
inflation which had not changed from Month 5 and the risks and assumptions
were identified in section 5.00. These included the increasing costs in relation to
Out of County Placements,, costs associated with the former chemical plant in
Sandycroft (Euticals Ltd) and also the risks associated with any periods of severe
weather which would impact on the Winter Maintenance reserve.

The current position of unearmarked reserves was detailed in paragraphs
6.01 and 6.02 where it was reported that after taking account of an allocation for
£0.518m for recovery costs following the March 2013 severe weather, and taking
account of the impact of the projected in year budget position, the current
projected level of the contingency reserve at the end of March 2014 was
£3.653m.

The Corporate Finance Manager also advised of a projected underspend
of £0.062m on the HRA which was an increase on the underspend of £0.014m
reported at Month 5. The projected closing balance at Month 6 of £1.495m was
5.2% of the total expenditure and satisfied the prudent approach of ensuring a
minimum level of 3%. Appendix 8 detailed the reasons for significant variances
occurring to date and the actions planned to deal with them.

Page 5



In response to a query from Councillor Haydn Bateman about the lower
than anticipated levels of income for Fixed Penalty Notices for Highways
Development Control & Regulatory Services, the Corporate Finance Manager
advised that he would provide a written response.

Councillor Bateman also asked about the variance of £0.276m in Repairs
and Maintenance and its cause. The Corporate Finance Manager said that the
increase in costs was to do with an increase in the number of jobs undertaken so
there was an overspend on materials but that work was ongoing to try and
mitigate some of the overspend in the second half of the financial year. The
Head of Finance said that the HRA was still anticipated to come in on target so
overall, it was a good news story. The Leader of the Council said that the ‘action
required’ section of the appendix indicated that discussions were underway and
indicated that an update would be provided at the appropriate time.

Councillor Marion Bateman asked if all of the work had been completed at
the Former Euticals Ltd site in Sandycroft. In response, the Chief Executive said
that it was an ongoing risk but that the costs had been reduced. The asset had
been gifted to the Council by the Crown Estates and the transfer of this was
nearing completion.

On the issue of rents referred to and the reviewing of the bad debt
provision based on the quarter 1 impact of the under occupation, known as
“‘bedroom tax”, Councillor Robin Guest said that the figure appeared to have
lessened and queried whether this was as a result of the impact not being as
severe as originally anticipated. The Corporate Finance Manager confirmed that
it had been revised due to the reduced impact in quarter one but that it would be
reviewed again after quarter two.

Councillor Arnold Woolley referred to the projected overspend for Early
Onset Dementia due to purchased domiciliary care costs and suggested that the
overspend would increase over time. He asked if plans were being put in place
for the future in terms of an increasing population and the need for more care and
expenditure. He also highlighted the variance for Transition and Disability
Services which was mostly due to an overspend against staff pay costs of
£0.055m due to an under provision of budget and the variance of £0.053m in
Administrative Support (Disability Services) which was mostly due to an
overspend against staff pay costs. In response, the Chief Executive gave a
general assurance and said that it was a demand led service and even though
the demand had not changed, more cases had now been met. He said that the
area needed to be looked at nationally but that the needs would be tracked and
funded accordingly. He said that the need was being met but highlighted the
transition from child to adult.

Capital Programme 2013/14 (Month 6)

The Corporate Finance Manager introduced a report to provide Members
with the Month 6 (end of September) capital programme information for 2013/14
which would also be submitted to Cabinet on 17 December 2013.

He explained that the table at paragraph 3.01.1 set out how the
programme had changed during 2013/14 with the revised figure being £33.614m

Page 6



55.

for Council Fund and £12.126m for HRA. The details of the changes during
2013/14 were reported which included an increase/decrease in grant funding
from Welsh Government and alteration of some funding profiles from external
sources. Details of the variances for individual programme areas were listed in
appendix B and details as to how the capital programme was financed was
reflected in the table at 3.05.01. Cabinet had approved rollover of £1.432m into
the 2014/15 budget as part of the Month 4 report. A further rollover into 2014/15
of £2.249m had been identified at this stage which reflected reviewed spending
plans across all programme areas. Details of the latest position in relation to
capital receipts was summarised in the report and the the continuation of holding
back 20% of core programme funding in the light of the continuing uncertainty
over the timing of receipts was being recommended to Cabinet. The situation
would be closely monitored and would be reported in future monitoring reports
and would also become part of the capital programme considerations for
2014/15.

Councillor Marion Bateman gave thanks to the Corporate Finance
Manager for the explanation that they had provided to her on the added years
pressures.

RESOLVED:
That the reports be noted.

WORKFORCE INFORMATION QUARTER 2 JULY - SEPTEMBER 2013

The Head of Human Resources and Organisational Development
introduced a report to provide Members with an update for the second quarter
2013/14 on the following areas:-

Establishment
Headcount
Agency
Turnover
Diversity
Absence

On the issue of Agency placements, the Head of Human Resources and
Organisational Development indicated that Members had requested that
information on the length of the placements be included in the Workforce
Information reports but this had been omitted. She apologised and advised that
the details would be included in future reports and that the information would be
sent to Members electronically. The table in paragraph 3.04 included details of
the number of placements for July to September and showed a reduction on the
same period in 2012 and a continuing pattern of the number of agency workers
used. The Head of Human Resources and Organisational Development
explained there were particular areas where agency placements exceeded 12
weeks and where the use of agency workers was high. She explained that plans
were in place in some service areas to review working patterns, with the intention
of making optimum use of the existing workforce, which would align with the
implementation of new terms and conditions under Single Status, thereby
allowing for significant reductions in the number of agency placements from April

Page 7



56.

2014. The number of days lost due to absence in quarter 2 had increased
slightly from the comparative quarter in 2012/13 but a number of areas where the
absence rates had been consistently high were starting to improve. There was
a slight improvement in the number of employees who had 100% attendance
which represented an increase of 1% when compared to the same quarter in
2012/13. it was agreed that the Head of Human Resources and Organisational
Development would submit a report to a future meeting of the Committee on the
ongoing work being undertaken on improving attendance.

Councillor Haydn Bateman referred to the figures reported for days lost
due to absence and the significant increase in stress/depression related
absences and queried how this would be addressed. The Head of Human
Resources and Organisational Development said that tools, techniques and
training were in place to urge managers to intervene with employees as early as
possible and to provide proactive support where necessary. She said that it
could be an area to focus on in a follow up report.

Councillor Arnold Woolley said that where there was a mix of stress
spread across domestic, social and work areas, it was important to ensure that
the Council did not end up compensating for this and asked if there were any
measures in place to guard against it happening. The Head of Human
Resources and Organisational Development said that this was a multi faceted
and complex area and there was a need to focus on managing workplace stress
as effectively as possible.

RESOLVED:
That the Workforce Information report for quarter two for 2013/14 be noted.

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

The Member Engagement Manager introduced the report to consider the
Forward Work Programme of the Committee.

He explained that the Budget workshops for Members were due to take
place on 16" and 18" December 2013 at 2pm and detailed the items due to be
considered at the January and February 2014 meetings of the Committee.
Following a discussion earlier in the meeting, the Workforce Information Quarter
3 report scheduled for February 2014 would include details of the ongoing work
being undertaken on improving attendance.

Councillor Arnold Woolley asked that the following issues be considered
by the Committee as he felt that they were threats to resources:-

- Issue of changing legislation on local authorities responding to flood relief
- responsibilities of a third Dee crossing, and its maintenance
- Mostyn Funship

The Member Engagement Manager said that the issues were in the remit of the

Environment Overview & Scrutiny Committee and that he would pass on the
suggestions to the Committee Facilitator. The Chief Executive confirmed that the

Page 8



57.

first two items could be considered but that the third issue was a private land
issue.

RESOLVED:
(@)  That the Forward Work Programme be noted; and

(b)  That the Member Engagement Manager pass on the suggestions from

Councillor Woolley to the Environment Overview & Scrutiny Committee
Facilitator.

MEMBERS OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC IN ATTENDANCE

There were no members of the public or press in attendance.

(The meeting started at 10.15 am and ended at 11.58 am)

Chairman

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Agenda ltem 4

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

DATE: THURSDAY, 16 JANUARY 2014

REPORT BY: CHIEF EXECUTIVE

SUBJECT: IMPROVEMENT ASSESSMENT LETTER FROM THE

AUDITOR GENERAL FOR WALES

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To advise Members of the Council's Improvement Assessment Letter
December 2013 from the Auditor General for Wales.

1.02 Members to note the report and agree the Council's Executive
response.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01  The Auditor General is required by the Local Government (Wales)
Measure 2009 (the Measure) to report any audit and assessment
work which informs tangible judgement as to whether a Council has
discharged its duties and met the requirements of the Measure.

2.02 This is the second letter that the Council has received; the first one
was reported to Cabinet in October 2013 and summarised the Auditor
General’s views on i) whether the Council had discharged its duties in
respect of improvement planning; ii) the Council's compliance with
requirements to make arrangements to secure continuous
improvement, and; iii) updates to the Wales Audit Office work plan
and timetable for delivering their Improvement Assessment work.
There were no further recommendations or proposals for
improvement.

2.03 This second letter covers an assessment of the Council’'s Annual
Performance Report.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01  The letter summarises the Auditor General's views on whether the
Council has discharged its statutory duties in respect of improvement
reporting.

3.02  The full letter is attached at Appendix 1.

Page 11



3.03

3.04

3.05

4.00

4.01

4.02

5.00

5.01

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

The Audit General has made no new statutory recommendations or
proposals for improvement.

As is good practice, the Council always makes a full response to
issues raised within the letter. The response is attached at Appendix
2.

Both the letter and the Council’s response will be received by Cabinet
next week and both will be presented to the Audit Committee meeting
later this month.

RECOMMENDATIONS

To advise Members of the Council's Improvement Assessment letter
received from the Auditor General for Wales.

Members to note the report and agree the Council's Executive
response.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The letter has no direct implication in relation to finance.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

The letter has no direct implication in relation to poverty.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

The letter has no direct implication in relation to environmental impact.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

The letter has no direct implication in relation to equalities.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

The letter has no direct implication in relation to personnel issues.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None required.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

Senior officers have had input into this report.

Page 12



12.00 APPENDICES

12.01 Appendix 1: The Auditor General's Improvement Assessment Letter
(December 2013)
Appendix 2: The Council's response to the Auditor General’s
Improvement Assessment Letter (January 2014)

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

None
Contact Officer: Karen Armstrong

Telephone: 01352 702740
Email: karen_armstrong@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



1//:?

WALES ALUDIT OFFICE

Wales Audit Office / Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru

SWYDDFA ARCHWLIO CYMRU

Mr Colin Everett

Chief Executive
Flintshire County Council
County Hall

Mold

CH7 6NB

Dear Colin

Improvement Assessment

24 Cathedral Road / Heol y Gadsirian
Cardiff /| Casrdydd

CF118L)

Tel / Ffon: 029 20 320500

Fax / Fiacs: 029 20 320600

Email / Ebost wales@wao.gov.uk
WWW WaD gov.uk

Reference 681A2013
Date 20 December 2013
Pages 10f3

In my letter of 16 September 2013, | gave my opinion on whether Flintshire County
Council (the Council) had discharged its statutory duties in respect of improvement
planning.

| am also required, under the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009 (the Measure), to
give an opinion on whether the Council has discharged its duties in respect of
improvement reporting and met the requirements of the Measure.

In my opinion, and based on audit work undertaken to date, the Council has
discharged its improvement reporting duties under the Measure, although
there is potential to strengthen its arrangements further.

| have concluded that the Council has discharged its improvement reporting duties under
the Measure because:

the Council published its Annual Performance Report (the Report) by 31 October

2013;

the Report provides an assessment of the Council’s performance in the preceding
financial year (2012-13) and sets out how the Council has sought to discharge its

duties under the Measure;

the Report includes a summary evaluation of whether or not the Council believes it
has been successful in achieving its improvement objectives;

the Report includes details of the Council’'s performance, and compares
performance against the national statutory performance indicators;

the Report includes a brief section inviting citizens to provide feedback or make

comments on the Report; and

the Report includes a short section on the ways in which the Council has sought to

collaborate.

Page 15



Our reference: 681A2013 Page 2 of 3

There are areas in which the Council could improve its self-evaluation of its annual
performance. In summary, the Report:

° presents too much detailed information in a style that is not engaging for citizens;

° includes, for each improvement objective, information about work that has and has
not gone well during 2012-13, but further clarity in summarising this information
would help readers to understand how the Council has determined its evaluation of
progress and outcomes;

° lacks information on the impact of the Council’s collaborative activity; and

° does not promote as well as it might the opportunity for citizens to provide feedback
by, for example, including a web link for comments.

We have provided more detailed feedback to relevant staff on a draft of this year’s Report.
Much of the complexity of this year’'s Report stems from the nature of the Council’s
Improvement Plan for 2012-13. | reported in my September letter that the presentation
and content of the Council’'s Improvement Plan for 2013-14 enable public engagement
with the Council’s priorities far more effectively than in the past. This change has the
potential to support the further development of the Council’s public reporting of its
performance.

Further proposals for improvement/recommendations

No new proposals for improvement are being suggested in this letter. We will continue to
monitor and report on the progress made by the Council in implementing the proposals
set out in my previous reports and letters. | will undertake more detailed work on the
arrangements that support the Council’s performance management and reporting over the
following months and report this, as well as summarising all of my work and that of
relevant regulators during 2013-14, in an Annual Improvement Report for the Council that
| will aim to publish by the end of March 2014.

Page 16



Our reference: 681A2013 Page 3 of 3

Yours sincerely

HUW VAUGHAN THOMAS
Auditor General for Wales

CC: Lesley Griffiths, Minister for Local Government and Government Business
Huw Lloyd Jones — Manager

Karen Lees — Performance Audit Lead

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



Wales Audit Office Improvement Assessment Letter

December 2013

Executive Response

The Wales Audit Office’s Improvement Assessment Letter is, overall, a fair summary
of the position of the Council. The letter is a positive endorsement of this transitional
year for improvement reporting with recognition of the potential for improved public
reporting following the introduction of this year’'s Improvement Plan.

There are no new statutory recommendations or proposals for improvement.

In our response we set out how we will make improvements to ensure full
compliance with the spirit and detail of the national guidance.

Listed below are the principal topics within the letter along with our response.

Issue

Response

In summary the report:

Presents too much detailed
information in a style that is not
engaging for citizens

The report needs to be sufficiently detailed to be
useful as both an internal performance review ‘tool’
and a review of annual performance for public
consumption. The report can be further improved.
The Council has introduced a new reporting model
following the publication of the new style
Improvement Plan. This provides a basis for a more
concise, graphic and readable annual plan with
selected performance information in support of the
outcomes set for achievement.

Includes, for each improvement
objective, information about work that
has and has not gone well during
2012-13, but further clarity in
summarising this information would
help readers to understand how the
Council has determined its evaluation
of progress and outcomes

The report does identify for each improvement
objective the activity which has both succeeded and
failed to achieve the targets set. The overall
objective evaluation of the supporting evidence is
represented in the RAG (red, amber, green) status.
An explanatory paragraph will be added for each
improvement objective in future reports to assist the
reader to more fully understand the evaluation.

Lacks information on the impact of the
Council’s collaborative activity

Many of the Council’s collaborative projects are in
planning or implementation stages, so it is premature
to assess outcomes. Where collaborative projects
are in delivery, examples of improved service
delivery have been summarised within the narrative
for each relevant improvement objective. The
expectations of WAO seem to have changed based
on the reporting practices of some other councils
which are held up as ‘good practice’. The Council will
develop its reporting style accordingly noting that this
does not mean that its plan is deficient.

Does not promote as well as it might
the opportunity for citizens to provide

Feedback opportunities were provided by telephone,
post, email and by web. Further opportunities for

1
Page 19




feedback by, for example, including a | citizen feedback including an enhanced use of social
web link for comments. media are being explored for next year. Public
interest in these types of plans is low so promotional
activity should be kept in proportion.

2
Page 20




Agenda Item 5

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

DATE: THURSDAY, 16 JANUARY 2014

REPORT BY: HEAD OF FINANCE

SUBJECT: REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2013/14
(MONTH 7)

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To provide Members with the Revenue Budget Monitoring 2013/14
report as at month 7.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 Revenue budget monitoring reports are provided on a monthly basis
to Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee before being
presented to Cabinet in the same cycle.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01  The revenue budget monitoring report as at month 7 is attached which
is scheduled for Cabinet on 21 January 2014.

3.02 Each month, budget monitoring reports are based on actual income
and expenditure to a given point (in this case Month 7) but also project
the most up to date position possible to year end.

3.03 The Month 7 report for 2013/14 will be on the same agenda as the
initial budget proposals for 2014/15.

3.04 At this stage in the year it is important to link the assumptions made in
the projected outturn for the current year to the budget for the new
year, particularly in relation to the estimated contingency sum
available which will provide funding for one-off and time limited costs
associated with the budget.

3.05 In particular, detailed work is currently being undertaken in relation to
the timing of the achievement of efficiencies within the Flintshire
Futures Programme, which in some cases are reliant on large and
complex projects e.g. Customer Work stream. By the time the final
budget proposals are presented to Cabinet in February this work will
have been completed which will ensure that the most accurate
projection possible is available when setting the budget.

Page 21



4.00

4.01

5.00

5.01

6.00

5.01

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

RECOMMENDATIONS

Members are asked to note the report.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

As set out in the report.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

None.

APPENDICES

Appendix A — Revenue Budget Monitoring 2013/4 (Month 7) report.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer:  Sara Dulson
Telephone: 01352 702287
Email: sara.dulson@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 22



Appendix A

REPORT TO:

DATE:

REPORT BY:

SUBJECT:

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

CABINET

TUESDAY, 21 JANUARY 2014

HEAD OF FINANCE

REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 2013/14 (MONTH 7)

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To provide Members with the most up to date revenue budget monitoring
information (Month 7) for the Council Fund and the Housing Revenue
Account in 2013/14.

4

1.02 INDEX OF CONTENTS

Section 2 Executive Summary

Paragraph 3.01 Council Fund Summary Table

Section 4 Inflation

Section 5 Monitoring Budget Assumptions & New Risks
Section 6 Unearmarked Reserves

Section 7 Housing Revenue Account

Appendix 1 Council Fund - Movement in Variances from Month 6
Appendix 2 Community Services -Variances Summary
Appendix 3 Environment -Variances Summary

Appendix 4 Lifelong Learning -Variances Summary

Appendix 5 Corporate Services -Variances Summary
Appendix 6 Central & Corporate Finance -Variances Summary
Appendix 7 Council Fund Unearmarked Reserves Summary
Appendix 8 Housing Revenue Account -Variances Summary
Appendix 9 Council Fund - Achievement of Efficiencies

2.00 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

2.01 The projected year end position, as estimated at Month 7, is as follows:

Council Fund

Net in year expenditure forecast to be £0.944m less than budget.
(A decrease of £0.068m on the £1.012m reported at Month 6).

Projected contingency reserve balance at 31 March 2014 of
£3.585m.

Page 23




3.00

3.01

Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

e Net in year expenditure forecast to be less than the budget by

£0.117m (£0.062m reported at Month 6)

o Projected HRA balances at 31 March 2014 of £1.551m

COUNCIL FUND LATEST IN YEAR FORECAST

The table below shows a projected positive variation of expenditure

against budget of £0.944m.
Original Revised In-Year Over /
TOTAL EXPENDITURE AND Budget | ygget | (Under) spend
INCOME
Month 6 | Month 7
£m £m £m £m
DIRECTORATES (Service Groups)
Services for Adults 45.642 44.328 (0.630) (0.610)
Services for Children 11.906 12.159 0.546 0.569
Housing Services 1.800 1.803 (0.293) (0.296)
Development & Resources 1.688 1.656 (0.057) (0.051)
TOTAL : COMMUNITY SERVICES 61.036 59.946 | (0.434) (0.388)
Assets and Transportation 6.015 6.088 0.003 0.065
Planning 1.708 1.717 (0.018) (0.039)
Public Protection 3.455 3.459 (0.008) (0.056)
Regeneration 0.715 0.704 0.006 0.011
Streetscene 19.320 19.210 0.336 0.333
Management, Support &
Performance 1.088 1.094 | (0.066) (0.060)
TOTAL : ENVIRONMENT 32.301 32.272 0.253 0.254
Culture & Leisure 6.876 6.386 0.388 0.384
Inclusion Services 14.058 13.254 | (0.030) (0.011)
Primary School Services 43.374 43.383 (0.045) (0.045)
Secondary School Services 36.638 37.468 0.000 0.002
Development & Resources 12.118 12.319 (0.216) (0.179)
TOTAL : LIFELONG LEARNING 113.064 | 112.810 0.097 0.151
Chief Executive 2.356 2.334 (0.051) (0.055)
Finance 14.265 14.285 | (0.517) (0.600)
HR & OD 2.427 2464 | (0.030) (0.032)
ICT & Customer Services 4922 5.046 (0.013) 0.010
Legal & Democratic Services 3.145 3.156 (0.035) (0.046)
TOTAL : CORPORATE SERVICES 27115 | 27.285( (0.646) (0.723)
TOTAL DIRECTORATES 233.516 | 232.313 (0.730) (0.706)
Central and Corporate Finance 26.236 27.439 (0.282) (0.238)
Total 259.752 | 259.752 (1.012) (0.944)

Page 24




3.02

3.03

3.04

3.05

3.06

3.07

The original budget column reflects the budget approved by Council on
the 1% March 2013. The revised budget column reflects in-year virements
which have been approved in compliance with Financial Procedure Rules.

It can be seen from the table in 3.01 that there is an overall reduction of
£0.068m in the projected positive variance as reported in Month 6. The
projected surplus on the Council Tax Collection Fund has increased by
£0.095m over month 6, although this is offset by a reduction in the amount
of windfall income anticipated to be received in the year. Within
Community Services - Services for Adults, delays in recruiting to a full
establishment of staff at the new Llys Jasmine extra care facility in Mold
has resulted in one off savings of £0.097m over month 5 although this is
offset by additional clients with long term residential packages and
increased costs for long term nursing.

All of the movements from Month 6 are summarised in Appendix 1 with
the detailed reasons for all variances by Directorate summarised within
Appendices 2 to 8.

Programme of Efficiencies

The 2013/14 budget contains £5.331m of specific efficiencies and the
table below summarises the current state of these items. This analysis
indicates that it is currently projected that £4.506m (84.5%) will be
achieved, resulting in a net underachievement of £0.825m. This is
marginally lower than the agreed efficiency target of 85% as detailed in
the Improvement Plan.

Value of | Valued of (Under) Over
Status of Efficiency Budgeted | Projected Achievement

Efficiency | Efficiency £m

£m £m

ALREADY ACHIEVED 1.973 1.973 0.000
EXPECTED TO BE 2.237 2.237 0.000
ACHIEVED IN FULL
ACHIEVABLE IN PART 0.631 0.296 (0.335)
NOT ACHIEVABLE 0.490 0.000 (0.490)
Total 5.331 4.506 (0.825)

Appendix 9 provides further details of the assumptions behind the
efficiency projections, and where relevant the actions required to address
items not currently expected to be achieved in full. It is important to note
that the impact of this analysis has already been included in the overall
Month 7 projected outturn position.

Initiatives commenced in the current year to reduce future expenditure

levels e.g. the ‘Back to Basics' programme have also been included in the
overall Month 7 outturn position.

Page 25



4.00

4.01

4.02

5.00

5.01

5.02

6.00

6.01

6.02

INFLATION

Pay Inflation of £0.734m has now been included within service budgets
to reflect the national pay award agreed earlier this year.

Non Standard price inflation — amounts of £0.255m (energy for Street
Lighting), £0.197m (energy), £0.187m (fuel) and £0.141m (food costs)
were included in the budget and held centrally. The Service budgets
which incur the costs affected by non standard inflation are monitored
closely and funds released on a full assessment of evidenced need. In
period 6, £0.141m for food costs were allocated. The current projected
outturn assumes that all the amounts are required in full. The nature of the
costs subject to non standard price inflation is that they are incurred
primarily over the Winter months therefore it is too early to project any
variations to budget at this stage.

MONITORING BUDGET ASSUMPTIONS AND NEW RISKS

Along with its strategic partners, the Council has intervened in relation to
the Former chemical plant in Sandycroft (Euticals Ltd), and continues to
be in discussion with the Welsh Government about solutions, roles and
responsibilities. Indicative costs for six months are reflected within the
current projections and the projections will be reviewed once all
outstanding information has been assessed and will be included in future
reports.

Out of County Placements continues to be kept under review due to the
demand led nature of the service with only minor variation from period 6 to
7.

UNEARMARKED RESERVES

The 2012/13 final outturn reported to Cabinet on 16 July showed
unearmarked reserves at 31 March 2013 (above the base level of
£5.564m) of £3.409m after taking into account a commitment in 2013/14
for use of £0.297 to meet one-off/time limited costs. In July, Cabinet
allocated £0.250m to the Winter Maintenance reserve, bringing the level
in the reserve to £3.159m.

After taking account of an allocation of £0.518m for recovery costs
following the March 2013 severe weather, and bringing in the impact of
the projected in year budget position the current projected level of the
contingency reserve at the end of March 2014 is an amount of £3.585m.

Page 26



7.00

7.01

7.02

7.03

7.04

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

13.00

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

On 19 February 2013, the Council approved a Housing Revenue Account
(HRA) budget for 2013/14 of £28.259m. The budget provided for a closing
balance of £0.903m, which at 3.2% of total expenditure satisfies the
prudent approach of ensuring a minimum level of 3%.

The 2012/13 final outturn reported to Cabinet on 16 July 2013 showed a
closing balance at the end of 2012/13 of £1.931m which was £0.861m
more than when the 2013/14 budget was set. This had the effect of
increasing the opening balance for 2013/14 by the same amount.

For 2013/14 there is an overall projected under spend of £0.117m and a
projected closing balance at month 7 of £1.551m, which at 5.4% of total
expenditure satisfied the prudent approach of ensuring a minimum level of
3%.

Appendix 7 details the reasons for significant variances occurring to date
and the actions planned to deal with them.

RECOMMENDATIONS

Members are recommended to:
a) Note the overall report.

b) Note the projected Council Fund contingency sum as at 315 March
2014 (paragraph 6.02).

c) Note the projected final level of balances on the Housing Revenue
Account (paragraph 7.03).

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The financial implications are as set out in Sections 3.00 - 7.00 of the
report.

ANTI-POVERTY IMPACT

None.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

Page 27



13.01

14.00

14.01

15.00

15.01

16.00

None.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

None.

APPENDICES

Council Fund - Movement in Variances from Month 6 - Appendix 1
Council Fund Significant Variances - Appendices 2 - 6

Council Fund - Movements on unearmarked reserves - Appendix 7
Housing Revenue Account Variances - Appendix 8

Council Fund - Achievement of Efficiencies - Appendix 9

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: Sara Dulson
Telephone: 01352 702287
Email: sara.dulson@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 28



COUNCIL FUND - REVENUE BUDGET 2013/14

i . FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
F Sir y Fflint
Hl{]fsbil'c Budget Monitoring (Month 7)

Summary of Movement from Month 6

Month 6

Service Directorates

Central and Corporate Finance
Variance as per Cabinet Report

Month 7

Service Directorates

Central and Corporate Finance
Variance as per Directorate Returns

Change Requiring Explanation

Community Services

Services For Adults

Resource and Regulated Service (Intake & Reablement) - delays in recruiting the full establishment of staff for the
new Llys Jasmine extra care facility in Mold result in a saving of -£0.082m compared with the previous projections
which had reflected a full complement of staffing through to the end of year with the balance made up of minor
changes.

Residential and Domiciliary Service (Mental Health and Substance Misuse Service) - additional clients with long
term residential packages (£0.064m), increased costs for long term nursing (£0.010m) with other minor variances of
£0.003m.

Other minor changes of less than £0.025m for Services for Adults
Development & Resources

Other minor changes of less than £0.025m

Services For Childrens

Family Placement - mainly due to additional payment to Barnardo's in respect of counselling for adoption boarded
out payments £0.018m. The remainder due to minor variance movements.

Other minor changes of less than £0.025m

Housing Services
Other minor changes of less than £0.025m

Environment

Assets & Transportation
Valuations & Estates - Vacant Post out to advert commitment included for expected start date ; repairs and
maintenance costs on miscelleanous land / property

Property Design & Consultancy - Estimated net shortfall for the running costs of Flintshire Connects Holywell after
taking account of income recharges

Highways Netwark & Transportation - costs awarded against the Council of 80k; income for Bus Service Operator
Grant Replacement money (fuel duty rebate)

Other minor changes of less than £0.010m

Planning

Planning Control and Land Charges = fees received over and above previously committed
Other minor changes of less than £0.010m

Public Protection

Community Protection - Legal Fees recovered

Environmental Protection - commitments reduced on current vacant posts

Other minor changes of less than £0.010m

Regeneration
Other minor changes of less than £0.010m

Page 29

£m

(0.730)
(0.282)

Appendix 1

£m

(0.706)
(0.238)

(1.012)

(0.097)

0.077

0.039

0.007

0.021

0.002

(0.003)

(0.944)
0.068

0.020

0.017

0.023

0.002

(0.020)
(0.001)

(0.025)
(0.016)

(0.007)

0.005

0.046



Streetscene
Business & Strategy

Waste Disposal & Waste Collection

Transportation & Logistics - assumes fleet efficiency will be achieved and Consultant fees will be absorbed

Other minor changes of less than £0.010m

Management Support & Performance
Other minor changes of less than £0.010m

Lifelong Learning

Culture & Leisure

Leisure Services - minor variances.

Libraries, Culture & Heritage - minor variances.

Inclusion Services
Inclusion Services - minor variances.

Out of County - minor variances.
Secondary School Services

Minor Variances

Development & Resources

Business Units - the projected outturn on Business Units has worsened by £0.036m since month 6. £0.011m
relates to the Capita One contribution. This is a regional project lead by Flintshire ICT and the estimated recharge
for the year has increased. The cost of this service remains a budget flaw. £0.007m relates to increased remissions
costs (school trips. uniform arants). The increased cost relates to increased demand on the remissions budaqet

Corporate Services

Legal and Democratic Services - Members Services savings (£0.015m), minor variances £0.004m

HR and Organisational Development - minor variances (£0.002m)

ICT and Customer Services - transfer of budget to Flintshire Futures as part of admin review efficiency

Finance - additional surplus on Council Tax Collection Fund (£0.095m), increased shortfall on CTRS £0.002m,

minor variances £0.010m

Chief Executives Department - Voluntary Sector contributions £0.004m, vacancy savings (£0.008m)

Central & Corporate Finance

Under recovery of Corporate Windfall income
Other minor variances

Total changes

Page 30

Appendix 1

0.009
0.004
(0.023)
0.006

0.007

0.001

(0.002)
(0.002)

0.018
0.002

0.002

0.036

0.054

(0.011)
(0.002)
0.023

(0.083)

(0.004)

(0.077)

0.046
(0.002)

0.044

0.068



APPENDIX 2

Regulated
Services (Intake
and Reablement)

COMMUNITY SERVICES
Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Month 7)
Revised | Projected Vatance
Service B Variance Last Cause of Major Variance Action Required
udget Outturn
Month
(Em) (Em) (Em) (Em)
Services for Adults
Hospital Social 0.405 0.349 (0.056) (0.059)| The underspend is due to a Hospital One-off.
Work (Intake and Social Worker covering in the Crisis
Reablement) Intervention Team. These costs
(£0.038m) are recovered from Health.
The balance (£0.018m) is due to a staff
vacancy.
Resources and 5.359 5.087 (0.272) (0.190)|Extra Care Projected underspend on Llys |Extra CareThe underspend

Jasmine (£0.307m) is due to an initial
delay in opening the facility.

In-house Domiciliary Care underspend
(£0.072m) due to greater use of
reablement and independent sector care
providers.

Client Transportation Service underspend
(£0.043m) relates to staff vacancies.
Day Services underspend (£0.037m)
mostly due to vacancies (£0.026m).
These underspends are offset by a
projected overspend within In-house
Residential Service (£0.196m) due to the
need to ensure staff cover (£0.219m)
additional premises costs (£0.047m) and
additional supplies and service (£0.048)
offset by client (£0.070m) and Health
(£0.048m) income.

against is one-off and non
recurring and has arisen due to
the opening of the facility being
part way through the current
year.

Client Transportation Service
Underspend adjusted in budget
rationalisation.

Residential Service further
work required to determine the
most appropriate way to
address the overspend.

Page 31



APPENDIX 2

COMMUNITY SERVICES
Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Month 7)
Revised | Projected yausace
Service Variance Last Cause of Major Variance Action Required
Budget Outturn
Month
(Em) (Em) (Em) (Em)

Locality Teams 13.881 13.944 0.063 0.058|0lder People Services Keep under review.

(Localities) > Locality Teams are together expected
to underspend (£0.151m) mostly due to | Most of the PDSI elements
vacant posts. previously included as part of
> Purchased domicilliary costs are the locality team budgets are
projected to overspend (£0.034) due to  |now shown within the Disability
additional service user costs. Services Heading with only the
> Purchased residential costs are Occupational Therapy service
projected to overspend (£0.113) due to  |remaining as part of the locality
additional service user costs. teams.
> Early Onset Dementia is projected to
overspend (£0.078m) due to purchased
domiciliary care costs.
> The balance (-£0.011m) is made up of
a number of smaller variances.

Resource and 15.243 15.139 (0.104) (0.099)|Learning Disabilities - As previously noted | The underspend in relation to

Regulated
Services
(Disability
Services)

this service includes a budget to help
offset the expected impact of a review of
joint funded packages between FCC and
Health. This accounts for a saving of
£0.140m within the net underspend
projection, and remains unchanged from
month 3. There are some other
compensating variances across this large
service which reflect the changes in client
demand.

the negotiations with Health on
jointly funded packages is
based on current assumptions.
These will be kept under
review and adjusted if proven
necessary.

Page 32



APPENDIX 2

COMMUNITY SERVICES
Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Month 7)
Revised | Projected Naniance
Service Variance Last Cause of Major Variance Action Required
Budget Outturn
Month
(Em) (Em) (Em) (Em)
Transition and 0.658 0.738 0.080 0.064|This is mostly due to overspends against |Keep under review.
Disability staff pay costs (£0.017m), third party
Services payments (£0.028m), transport (£0.007m,
(Disability and a shortfall of grant income of
Services) £0.028m. (Supporting People)
Disability 1.941 2.011 0.070 0.070|The overspend is due to additional Keep under review.
Services transition service user costs.
(Disability
Services)

Page 33



APPENDIX 2

COMMUNITY SERVICES
Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Month 7)
Revised | Projected variance
Service Variance Last Cause of Major Variance Action Required
Budget Outturn
Month
(Em) (Em) (Em) (Em)

Administrative 0.407 0.460 0.053 0.053| This is mostly due to an overspend Keep under review.
Support against staff pay costs (£0.044m).
(Disability
Services)
Residential and 0.703 0.583 (0.120) (0.197)|This underspend is based on current care |Keep under review.
Domiciliary packages. An additional £0.0259m
Service (Mental budget has been added to this area in
Health & 2013 to reflect the expectation of the
Substance transfer from Health of an individual with
Misuse Service) a high cost transition package, there has

been a delay in transferring this client into

the service. The current underspend

would therefore be higher but reflects the

cost of current care packages including

some other new clients.
Professional 0.828 0.744 (0.084) (0.080)|This is mostly (£0.050m) due to a one-off |One-off.
Support (Mental pay cost reduction following an agreed
Health & absence with no pay.
Substance

Misuse Service)

Page 34



APPENDIX 2

COMMUNITY SERVICES
Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Month 7)
Revised | Projected Nausnce
Service 5 Variance Last Cause of Major Variance Action Required
udget Outturn
Month
(Em) (Em) (Em) (Em)

Forensic Budget 0.305 0.169 (0.136) (0.147)|Reflects current care packages for . .

(Mental Health & 2013/14. Keep under review - potential

Substance volatility due to changes in

Misuse Service) client numbers and demands
at short notice from prison or
courts. The possibility of re-
aligning budget between the

' two services has been

_uoqm:m._o Budget 0.482 0.427 (0.055) (0.054)|Reflects current care packages for considered and dismissed for

(Learning 2013/14. now as there are early

Disability) indications of additional Mental
Health clients although at this
stage potential costs or start
dates are unknown.

Other Services 4116 4.067 (0.049) (0.049)|Various minor variances. Continue to review but not

for Adults expected to be recurrent.

variances

(aggregate)

Subtotal: 44.328 43.718 (0.610) (0.630)

Page 35



APPENDIX 2

COMMUNITY SERVICES
Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Month 7)
Revised | Projected variance
Service Variance Last Cause of Major Variance Action Required
Budget Outturn
Month
(Em) (Em) (Em) (Em)
Development & Resources
Business 1.144 1.102 (0.042) (0.052)| The underspend within this area is mostly |One off.
Systems due to vacant posts.
(Development &
Resources)
Vacancy Control (0.100) 0.000 0.100 0.100 Realignment of vacant posts
Other 0.633 0.524 (0.109) (0.105)|Various minor variances. Continue to review but not
Development & expected to be recurrent.
Resources
variances
(aggregate)
Subtotal: 1.677 1.626 (0.051) (0.057)

Page 36



APPENDIX 2

COMMUNITY SERVICES
Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Month 7)
Revised | Projected Veriance
Service Variance Last Cause of Major Variance Action Required
Budget Outturn
Month
(Em) (Em) (Em) (Em)
Services for Children
Family 1.977 2.331 0.354 0.333|The overspend is mainly as a result of an |A review of the Family
Placement increase in the number of foster care Placement Team has been
(Children’s placements within the service. Itis also  |undertaken the outcome of
Services) due to the increasing number of court which is being considered and
orders for Residence and Special will inform future planning and
Guardianship orders which invariably possible efficiencies.
attract an ongoing allowance for the
carers.
Youth Offending 0.308 0.256 (0.052) (0.051)| The underspend within this area is mostly |One-off.
Team (Children's due to vacant posts.
Services)
Out of County 3.178 3.427 0.249 0.248|Costs reflect existing placements up until | The focus of high cost
Pooled Budget March 2014. The increase in overspend |placements is now a North
(Children's (£0.039m) is due to additional placements|Wales project and will
Services) (£0.080m) offset by a change in care continued to be reviewed.
packages (£0.020m) and a placement
ending (£0.021m).
Other Services 6.709 6.727 0.018 0.016{Various minor variances. Continue to review but not
for Children expected to be recurrent.
variances
(aggregate)
Subtotal: 12.172 12.741 0.569 0.546

Page 37



COMMUNITY SERVICES APPENDIX 2
Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Month 7)

Revised | Projected adance
Service Variance Last Cause of Major Variance Action Required
Budget Outturn
Month
(Em) (Em) (Em) (Em)
Housing Services
Homelessness 0.360 0.154 (0.206) (0.213)|Variance is due to improvements in the  [Keep under review. Variance
Accommodation service where methods have been putin [is due to improvements in the
(Housing place to reduce the cost of temporary service where methods have
Services) accommodation. been put in place to reduce the
Quay House project has been delayed cost of temporary
until 2014/15. accommodation.

Accommodation 1.213 1.161 (0.052) (0.055){Service undergoing restructure which is  |Restructure to be
Support Team not yet in place. implemented.
(Housing
Services)
Other variances 0.262 0.224 (0.038) (0.025)|Various minor variances. Continue to review but not
(aggregate) expected to be recurrent.
Subtotal: 1.835 1.539 (0.296) (0.293)
Total : 60.012 59.624 (0.388) (0.434)

Page 38



APPENDIX 3

ENVIRONMENT
Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Month 7)
Service _MUMMMM. _uma_._ﬂmﬂ.ﬂn Variance Mﬂﬂ_ﬂﬂnm Cause of Variance Action Required
(Em) (Em) (Em) (Em)
Assets & Transportation 6.082 6.147 0.065 0.003

Industrial Units (1.256) (1.155) 0.101 0.100|Estimated net income shortfalls across the |Keep Unit rental income
Industrial Estate portfolio which have closely monitored throughout
increased at Period 6 by a further £5k. 2013/14.

Property Holdings 0.083 0.051 (0.032) (0.036){NNDR costs lower than anticipated Review of site budgets
necessary in line with asset
management programme

Property Asset & 0.528 0.428 (0.100) (0.114)(Net Vacancy Savings

Development

Highways Development 0.813 0.921 0.108 0.068|Lower than anticpated levels of income for

Control & Regulatory FPN's (based on improving standards of

Services repair by utility companies) & road
closures. At Period 7 a commitment of
£60k is included for the potential excess
payment to be made to the Council's
Insurers in relation to a claim.

Aggregate of other Variances 5914 5.902 (0.012) (0.015)

Planning 1.717 1.678 (0.039) {0.018)

Planning Control 0.363 0.344 (0.019) (0.005)|Favourable move in planning fee income |Further potential for increased
which is now estimated to be £15k in planning fee income which will
excess of income target be closely monitored

Aggregate of other Variances 1.354 1.333 (0.021) (0.014)

Public Protection 3.493 3.437 (0.056) (0.008)

Community Protection 1.243 1.193 (0.050) (0.025)|Period 7 includes a Court Costs award of
£22k following the successful prosecution
of Talacre Park Holiday Park by the Health
& Safety Enforcement Team

Aggregate of other Variances 2.250 2.244 (0.006) 0.017

Regeneration 0.704 0.715 0.011 0.006

Page 39



APPENDIX 3

Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Month 7) ENVIRONMENT
Revised | Projected Variance
Service Budget Outturn Variance Period 6 Cause of Variance Action Required
(Em) {E£m) (Em) (Em)
Streetscene 19.210 19.543 0.333 0.336!
Waste Disposal & Waste 9.266 9.600 0.334 0.326]Plastic Recycling prices reduced by £100 |Consider potential impact on
Collection per tonne between July and September MTFP going forward
resulting in an estimated income reduction
of £50k.
Staff backfilling costs as a result of the on-
going investigation within waste.
The Sustainable Waste Management Consider impact on MTFP
Grant (SWMG) has been reduced in-year |going forward
by up to 5% resulting in a funding shortfall
of at least £150k
Aggregate of other Variances 9.944 9.943 (0.001) 0.010
Management Support & Performance 1.095 1.035 (0.060) {0.066)
Management Support & 1.095 1.035 (0.060) {0.066){Net Vacancy Savings ahead of service
Performance review implementation and reduced
commitments on supplies and services
budgets.
Total : 32.301 32.555 0.254 0.253

Page 40



Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Period 7) LIFELONG LEARNING APPENDIX 4
Service Mﬂﬁwww _un_.un_._ﬂ“”ﬂa Variance _.Mmmn.._ _q_”wm”: Cause of Variance Action Required
(Em) (Em) (Em) (Em)

Culture & Leisure 6.386 6.770 0.384 0.387|School Library Service (£0.100m saving) Service Manager to place a hold
Following an agreement at DMT, to mitigate the  [on £0.100m of the Flintshire
Directorate overspend and to contribute towards  [subsidy.
the value for money programme, a nhumber of
measures will be taken to reduce expenditure in
the School Library Service.
Libraries, Culture & Heritage (£0.004m saving)
Minor variances
Leisure Services (£0.488m pressure) As part of the Leisure Action
There are a number of pieces of work being Plan a number of solutions mnm._
completed to explore solutions to the remaining being explored and ©
deficit. £0.023m relates to the final costs for Swim |[implemented including cessatiamn
Flintshire. This programme ceased in August. of Swim Flintshire, Leisure ~ ©
£0.034m relates to employee costs. £0.301m Service Review, Leisure Oosﬁmwg
relates to pressures on income across centres. Centre and Asset Review.
£0.065m relates to pressures on premises
budgets, £0.045m to security costs, £0.007m to
credit/debit card fees and £0.013m to other minor
variances.

Inclusion Services & 13.244 13.233 (0.011) (0.029)|Inclusion Services & Special Schools (£0.011m

Special Schools saving)
Minor Variances

Primary School Services 43.382 43.337 (0.045) (0.045)|Primary School Services (£0.045m saving) Service Manager to review and

Minor Variances

reduce planned expenditure by

£0.025m.




Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Period 7)

LIFELONG LEARNING

APPENDIX 4

Service

Revised
Budget
(Em)

Projected
Outturn
(Em)

Variance
(Em)

Variance
Last Month
(Em)

Cause of Variance

Action Required

Secondary School

Services

37.467

37.469

0.002

0.000

Secondary School Services (£0.002m saving)

Development &
Resources

12.378

12.199

(0.179)

(0.216)

Children, Youth & Community (£0.006m saving)
Minor variances

Schools ICT (£0.150m saving)

In an effort to reduce the Directorate overspend
and to contribute towards the value for money
programme, DMT have made the decision to place
a hold on all uncommitted expenditure in Schools
ICT.

Transport (£0.013m pressure)

Minor Variances

Service Units (£0.004m pressure)

Pressures of £0.064m on Pupil Support (Free
School Meals) and £0.028m on Regional Capita
One have been offset by estimated savings on
Mobile Classrooms (£0.055m), Insurance
(£0.044m) and other minor variances of £0.011m.

Facilities Services (£0.042m saving)
Minor Variances

Minor Pressures £0.002m

Service Manager to place a hold
on £0.150m of the budget within

Schools ICT.

We are awaiting information
from the Schools relating to

ge 42

©
ol

Music remissions which is likely

to affect the estimated costs.

Total :

112.857

113.008

0.151

0.097




Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Month 7)

CORPORATE SERVICES

Appendix 5

Service

Revised Budget
(Em)

Projected Outturn
(Em)

Variance
(Em)

Variance Last
Month
(Em)

Cause of Variance

Action Required

Chief Executive

2.334]

2.279

(0.055)

(0.051)

£0.018m Corporate voluntary sector contribution to
Dangerpoint

(£0.058m) Vacancy savings

(£0.015m) minor variances

Finance

14.287

13.687

(0.600)

(0.517)

(£0.119m) net Vacancy savings following
reallignment of budget

(£0.894m) net surplus on the Council Tax Collection
Fund after meeting the £0.305m costs allocated in
2013/14 budget (£0.115m allocated to Software will
remain unspent)

£0.413m CTRS shortfall in funding compared to
estimated in year cost

Demand led service but subject to
ongoing monitoring. Contributing to
national discussion on CTRS
funding for 2014/15.

Legal & Democratic Services

3.156

3.110

(0.046)

(0.035)

(£0.021m) net Vacancy savings including the use of
Agency/Locums and recharges

(£0.015m) Members Services underspend
(£0.010m) minor variances

Page 43



Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Month 7)

CORPORATE SERVICES

Appendix 5

Service

Revised Budget
(Em)

Projected Outturn
(Em)

Variance
(Em)

Variance Last
Month
(Em)

Cause of Variance

Action Required

Human Resources &
Organisational Development

2517

2.485

(0.032)

(0.030)

(£0.030m) reduced DBS Check expenditure
(£0.032m) Vacancy savings

£0.027m loss of income from external organisations
£0.003m minor variances

ICT & Customer Services

5.045

5.055

0.010

(0.013)

(£0.026m) Vacancy savings

(£0.027m) additional Registrars Income
£0.060m postage costs

£0.003m minor variances

Postage contract under review.

Total :

27.339

26.616

(0.723)

(0.646)

Page 44



CENTRAL AND CORPORATE FINANCE

APPENDIX 6

Service

Revised Budget

(Em)

Projected
Outturn

(Em)

Variance

(Em)

Variance
Last
Month
(Em)

Cause of Variance

Action Required

Central Loans &
Investment Account

15.283

15.041

(0.242)

(0.242)

Unsupported (Prudential Borrowing) - Funding for
Local Government Borrowing Initiative (LGBI)
transferred into settlement from 2013/14
(previously specific grant) -£0.415m which isn't
needed to finance any new borrowing during
2013/14. The total of -£0.415m includes the
£0.385m which was transferred into the
settlement plus a residual £0.030m which wasn't
utilised from the 2012/13 specific grant allocation
of £0.192m.

Reduction in net external interest payable (-
£0.047m), Reduction in interest receivable on
temporary investments (£0.127m), increased
cost of Minimum Revenue Provision (£0.088m)
increased internal interest (-£0.015m), reduction
in debt management costs (-£0.010m).

Coroners

0.193

0.248

0.055

0.055

Due to a change in the lead authority for
Coroners service provision (effective from May
2013), it has been brought to our attention that
Wrexham CBC are continuing to process a
significant number of invoices pertaining to
financial year 2012/13 (currently value circa
£0.110m) for which the Flintshire share is 50%,
resulting in a current year budget pressure.

Page 45



CENTRAL AND CORPORATE FINANCE

APPENDIX 6

Projected Variance
Service Revised Budget Variance Last Cause of Variance Action Required
Outturn
Month
(Em) (Em) (Em) (Em)

Centrally Held 4.531 3.759 (0.772) (0.815)|Net budget adjustments of £0.680m as approved

Provisions in the Month 3 report (Community Services
£1.185m, Leisure Management (-£0.505m)
Surplus on recovery of FCC share of pension
fund deficit - final year of three year strategy (-
£0.128m), under recovery of corporate windfall
income £0.046m. ( other minor variances (-
£0.010m).

Central Service (1.931) (1.620) 0.311 0.311 |Shortfall of £0.311m of internal income recovered

Recharges from trading accounts and the HRA.

Former Euticals Ltd - 0.000 0.400 0.400 0.400 |Potential costs for six months at £0.060m per

Sandycroft site month plus some specific one-off costs relating to
site related costs in view of the public protection
risk.

Other variances - 9.167 9.176 0.010 0.009

aggregate

Total : 27.243 27.004 (0.238) (0.282)

Page 46




Movements on Council Fund Unearmarked Reserves

APPENDIX 7

Total Reserves as at 1 April 2013

(Inclusive of total increase of £0.270m agreed
as part of the 2013/14 budget)

Less - Base Level

(Inclusive of total increase of £0.270m agreed
as part of the 2013/14 budget)

Total Reserves above base level

Less - Amount approved by Council on 1%
March for funding of one-off costs in the
2013/14 budget proposals

Less - Amount approved by Cabinet on 16"
July for reinstatement of funding within the
Winter Maintenance reserve following
utilisation of funding during 2012/13 (late
March severe weather event)

Amount available for delegation to Cabinet

Add projected underspend as at 31%' March
2014

Less - Estimate of severe weather recovery
costs

Projected Level of Total Contingency
Reserve as at 31° March 2014

Page 47

£m

9.540

(5.834)

£m

3.706

(0.297)

(0.250)

0.944

(0.518)

3.585



Page 48



(29)

(211)

08¢

L6V

T1ej0

43

(£1)

8SE'8

GE'8

(e)ebaibbe)
S3OUBLIBA JBYID

*S)20|q ajjauosiew

uo Y63 Buiaes joesjuod Bulues|d Jo uone||Paue)
"3WaYDs unoasip puiq Aj)ea o} anp

3W0dU| JO NPEF Jayuny e pajelauab uoissIWWOoD JBJBAA
‘swooul

%G €13 Jayuny e Bunelausb sabieysas soueses|o plop
"48G3 Jo junowe

Ul paAlaoas BUIUSSIOS JO) JUBWIASINGWI JUBWAINI0IY

(ev)

(0gt)

2TL'L

258l

sajejs3 buisnoH

‘SL/pLOZ Ul paseyoind aq [Iw Ing ¥ 1/EL0Z W Buisyeuajew
10U S1S02 2JE)40S 0} 8NP YGE3J 10} Jsanbal piemioy Auier)

‘Buines Bujjeaso

pajedionue UBY) JAMO| Y083 SISO ules}§ pund uoisuad
‘pajsanbal uaaq SeyY ¢1/£10Z U0 UOHBWIO| 43013
Buines ‘s|enjoe g1/z10z 1e palosyas sabieyssy poddng

(£02)

(€12)

9592

uoddng p aoueuly

'ZH i puadsiano ay) jo swos
ajebijiw pue A} 0) suuad siaes) yim Ajasolo Buijiom
Sj wea) jassy BuisnoH pajuawsa|dwi 8q 0} aJnjonusay

"GL/yL0Z ut paseyaind aq |Im Inq 1/£ 102 Wl Buisieuslew
JOU S)S0D asempiey 0} anp 30/3 Joj 1sanbai piemuoj Aued

‘Buiond maiasl o) si sumiad siaes) “sqofl

1500 ybiy jo Jaquunu sy} ul asessoul 0} anp Juswdinbs
uo puadsiano 4893 pue s|euajew uo puads JSA0 YEOVI
‘aoe|d

Ul 8z8aJ) Juswyinioas pue adeyd ul Buleq Jou ainjonyisal
0) anp sale|eS Uo 3dUBLEA puads Japun 1au %6223

9.2

174

0.9'8

£6E'8

aoueusjulepy pue siieday

|H JE S1S02
pajoadxa maiAal pue Xe| woolpag, jo 1oedu JOjUOW

%8623 jo Buiaes e ul bunynsal * xe) wooipaq,
40 1oBdW| L) UO paseq pamalaal uoisiaoid 193] peg

(0£2)

(e22)

(691°'22)

(9v6'92)

sjuay

‘wes) Bupueul4 jepde) yim sainby jo sbuiw mainay

“UINjal |eul] a0UBAPY UO pajendjed

YLEF JO £1/210Z uo WawAed Japun "winal SYYH pug
ul uoisnjoul 10§ sainby [epded o} sjuswpuawe Jsyun4
‘pajs|dwod

spunol Jabpnq Jaye papuswe sabieyd Guioueul jenden

343

681

9SE'9

2919

Apisqns wuH

pasinbay uopoy

asuepep Jo asned

(w3}
Wuow

JseT] asueueA

(w3)
asuepep

(w3)
wnuno
pejasfoid

(w3)
1ebpng
pasiay

asjueg

L pouad - yoday asueuep sole vH

Page 49



Page 50



\' 90L'0 suojejuasald jo Hulwi} - SSaUSSIBWOH

N lszo0o sbunes Aouapiy3 BuisnoH

\r 1200 M3INBY UOHENSILIIPY B3O (BIBUSD

\' S10°0 VSO - JEls Jo |uawsoeidal UON - JuBwwaIfey Ael

\p 0v0°0 saonoesd Buisixa Jo uoisinal - wes | Juatwadeld Ajwe4

Vo cv0'0 S8DIAIBS S,UBIPIIYD - 1504 Bunsixg Joy Buipung |ewaix3

\r £60'0 sjons] Alianoe paonpai - S)Ybiy pansesaild

\' 001°0 210 BAXD JO |9A3)] B U JuaWB|qeay

$82IAIBS Ajunwuio)

(92 XION3ddv) ebiuey) esjaseg

L0 iol
\r 8L0°0 S19S( 8BS YleaH _m.cci
‘Jaw uaaq sey Asuaioyje sy} Ji Jeak |et

ay Jo pus a __”__.5 a Em_w_e :M.%_._v_ aq «.M..w __.___MN._m \r 0010 puews(q woli4 awodu| paseasnuy) - buibiey) jequapisay
saomag Apunwuiod

(82 XIGNIddY) sebieyd g sead

31EVAIIHOV wivd | ooid | aanaHov
10N NI 318VA3IIHOV OL d3103dX3 AQV3IHIV
AON3IDId43 AON3101443 AON3IDI443 AON3IDI443
UOJJEULIOJU| JUBAB|OJ (w3)
4830 10 snjejs uojpjsod Jualnd Aoueps uopduaseq Asusions
uoj}isod juasiun
yoddns 0} uojjeuriojuy JBYPUng misod ¥ ? pajebpng
L Yjuon
EENETE]

AISIUL]
g A 5 22

Buici{uoN 196png

Page 51



82 03 10 PUSdSIOA0 UB BUIMOYS MOU SI .wmu:n_ EESC ; o
St} S3OUBISWNDI Jasn adwias ul abueyd aofoesd Juswain
0} anp 13AaMoH (p¥€'0)3 Jo puadsiapun \f panaidiuy - sjuawaoejd AuUnod JO INO - SBJIAIBS S,UaJPIIYD
ue Bupmoys sem 186png S|y € Yuow je sy
|ocoo sjuawaoed awnjoa
\» MO] 1509 ybiy jo Juswaundoud jeuoifal - gNH juswIaN20ld
\» 5,00 saspiag pue se|ddng - a1eQ (BI00S
\r €000 sa2Auag pue sayddng - seainuag buisnop|
\r 0£0'0 M3iAR) snjipuadxa uonejuawaidwi }sod - SiHYd
Saas Aunuiwod
(92 XIGNIddY) Wwewenaoid
lesvo IVIOL
\f 500°0 aieo Aep - 92IAI9S 91BD JAISOJ DANEIUBARLJ|
"L€0°03 JO puadsiano . ]
ue Bumoys Ajuauno sy wea) 1Sy dyL \» 0L0°0 uononpay 1a6png wea} LSy - SIS 5,UsIPIND
\¢ SL0°0 Aouaidyja sjs0d podsuel] - S9IAIBG m.:m;u__:oﬁ
“JB3A |BloUBUY 3Y) LI S3JE| |UN paAaioe
uaaq sey Aouaiya SIY) JI UMOUY 3q Jou |IMm \r 0100 sia)suieq / SJONN|0S Jo 8SM - S84 _mmm._ﬁ
) sea4 |eban jo asnjeu aqeisipasdun ay o) ang
\r 010°0 201uas j|npe ajeudosddy - adnNsnf YINOA
378VAIIHOV wavd b o 08| aaaimov
1ON NI 319VAIIHOV Ol a3103dX3 AQVIETY
AON3IOI443 AON3IOI1443 ADN3IDI443 AON3IOI443
uopELLIo| JUBABI) (w3) 4 p
u ke U
48430 10 sne)s uopisod Jusnd uop|sod Jueung Asuepouyg opjauosaq 9013
uoddns 0} uojjeuLioju) DYUN 4 pejebpng
L Yluoln
Sepuedyg

uliojuoyy yobpng

Page 52



AnysiuI |
jurgyy 4 L_VMNV

fesvo VL0l
R wea] juswabeuey
\r 0500 JO uojlES||RUCHRY - S3AUNCSaY pue Juswdojarag
\r 0v0°0 Jsod Jabeurw WeESa} BUO JO [BACWAY - SBINIAG S,UBIPIYD
\r 8L0°0 30IAJS UIPIBAA JO MBIABY BI1JBS
‘ajeloalqg
B} UIYIM 313UMaS|a Spuadsiapun yim 1asyo
Buiaq si Aouatoaya sy} JO JusWSARYIE-UOU .
3y 1w pajou aq PINGYS I "S1/v10Z Ut paniayoel e 0se0 Soinas Bunr pajoddng jo MaINSY
Alin aq o) pajaadxa si pue (wogQ03) ¥1/EL0Z
uy panaiyoe Apued uaaq sey Aouaiyya ay |
SRS Aunwiwo)
(P XIGN3ddYv) uBiseq teuonesjuebio
89°0 Iv.iOL
620’0
\¢ SIORLUOD PASINDS - MBIADY Hodsuel]
Tnd
3IGVAIIHOV 1yvd INI a3AzIHOY 38 A3AIIHOV
1ON NI 378VAIIHOV OL G3103dX3 AQV3IHTY
AON3IDI443 AON3I01443 ADN3IOI443 AON3101443
UOQBULIOJU| JUBAS|OJ (w3)
J8y30 10 snje)s uojjisod yueund UORISOd JuBLIND Aousd3 uopydpaosaqg Asueidyss
uoddns o} uojjeunioju Jayyng pejeBpng
L Qjuoy
Seuspya

BulIG) UG 39BpNg

Page 53



Page 54



m._EA“,:__H_
WL A 3 GLV

(1897) aanenu) BumoLiog JUBWWIBAOD uonejuawadwy |jny
18207 0) 8NP G/ LOC PUB YLIELDZ W Uwh_sdw._ \ A j0 Oc_wmznwh. An‘E(IV ueld Emgmmcms_ jossy m%gam_—.-
Jou sem jey) ainssasd panosdde snojaald
1in} Ui P3ASIYOE 3q W A3uatoya Siy) pue : 0-win) y6iupiw 1sod sease [epuspisal-uou - Bupybi 1eans
{paidope usaq sey Aayod By 19ans mau syl Yo 0S0°0 _z ybiup
JuswONAUT
(a2 XION3ddY) aBuey) aawies
10 avioL
vL/EL0Z Ul 1w g Buissasoid ajeyoea] - auaas
[2a 11w 196se) dwodu mau By Jey) patedionue si ) \r §.00 ’ JEEel A
186png Aoliod - S8ION Jep.o uofeinbay oies
SKEMUBHH LIV W03} 1L UDYONPaY 136pNnE Ve €100 MION Japio uofje(nBay aijel)
“uojyisod ; Su) - 0IAIDS SIaNIE
awodu snidins e Buibiodas Afjuaund sieven \¢ BL00 eaeds ajqena| paseaiy S|
€L0Z 3UN[ |S| WOJ) PASEaIdU) IaM SIAAIRS . _
Juawaneaseg pue BuISUS ylog Jo) S84 \f 5200 Saje) |aKew 0] 3sesJduUl - UoNI3I0Id AHIQNd
‘uoiisod awooul 7
snidins e Guipodas Auaund saje}s3y |ein)nouby \f -mcc a Sfepia) ajers3 Eninouby
UBWUOHAYT
(82 X1GNTFddv) sebiey) g sead
Tind
JI8VAIIHOVY 1¥vd NI G3A3IHOV 38 J3A3IHOV
10N NI 319VA3IHOVY 01 3193dx3 AQYIHTY
AON3I01443 ADN3IDI443 AON3IDIZ43 AON3IOI443
uojeuLIouy (w3)
jJuBAS|aJ JOYI0 JO sMElS uopsod uopisog Juewng | AouePua uopduoseq Aouejou)3
juaund yoddns 0) uogeunoju) Jeylng pajabpng
1 Quow
SauePi]

BuUHGHUOY 1eBpng

Page 55



v.__:.na::.h
w4 L_WMMV

i 19pUus}-al PUB SJOBIUOD SIAAIRS
196pnq a1ABs UINIW pagiosqe Aduaidl3 Va 9£0°0 SNg PasiPISqNs JO MIIASY - SAIAIBS uoyepodsuely
‘a2eid ul . 1esodsip
MOU 3Je pue ssadosd Japua) e jo Led se papseme \r 0500 a1sem 10j SjusWabueLe podsues| Japua] - SBDISS JISEM
uaaq aAey sjuawabueue podsuel] MaN
JuBWLOHALT,
(94 XION3ddY) Wuswseindold
loaso Iviol
Aauaiaie syl Jo Jusiuaaaiyde leooo s9553%0.d juauNDd auyweal}s - Aisuoiiels
sajeipul ¢ pouad Je uonisod Guuojiuopy 196png Ve pue sayddng - aoueuopad B Hoddng ajesojoanay
“Aausidiya siuj jo JuBlBA3IyTe A €000 sjuawAed abeayw paonpal - [BABL) YEIS
Sajedipul { poliad 18 uoilisod buuojiuop 186png
“Rousroa siyi jo juswaABHyde : BGuryiom aybe - wea) juswdojaaaq ssauisng
S31E0IPUI  POLS & UONISOd BULIOHIUO 196png Ve 000 puom i :
‘3AI3S2I SNJRIS
316uis sy woyj 12w 6uiaq S| KEJIOYS F1/ELOZ ) uonaayo3 Aepinies
BUL 'SL/PLOZ U PaABIYDE 3q 0 pajedidiiue | A 0ri 0 40 110 01 in} WOJ; SBUIAES BJO3A - SBIISS BISEM
si os snje|g 3i6uis Jo uopejuawaldwy ay) uo
juepuadap s) AouBidye SIY) JO JUBWBABIYIE 3y |
‘anIasal sniejs
3i6uis ay) wouj 12w Bwiag s! jiejous vL/EL0Z
3yl ‘Si/p10Z Ul paAayde aq o} pajediijue \r 00£°0 juawaalbe {|| bed jo uoneuawaidun - auaIS)BANS
st 0s sme)g 3jbuls jJo uoiiejusweidw) ay) uo
Juepuadap s| AOUBIOND SIY) JO JUSWIABIYIE Y]
‘A1l st 3123 Aq Aouaioie
au) UO JuBWBABIYOE Japun pue AJBSSaI3u
uotieynsuod Guiobuo yim pakeap Jayung Va 0500 ABajeuls JO 1ISIASY - SIDUBIUBAUOD JANd
usaq aney sAmised pue uledd pue €102 IHdy
UIOE IRUN 3S0[0 LUPIP |SMAIOH 'SUSPIBS) JaMO |
Tnd
J19YA3IHOV 14vd NI G3A3IHOV 38 a3A3IHOY
10N NI 3T8VAIIHOVY Ol Q3193dX3 AQV3YTv
AON3IOI443 AON3101443 AONIIOIE43T AON3IOI443
uofeuuojuy (w3)
jJueABjad 18430 10 smeys uopisod uopisod Juaung Kouepoyg uopduasaq Adusjday3
uaun? pyoddns 03 uopewoju) JayUNg pajeBpng
L yjuoly
SapuaP3

BuUHONUGCH 3aBpNg

Page 56



ANYRILIY
utig A im&

losoro viol
193ys aduejeg . .
JuBWUCNAUT 3y) us SJuBleg 2)Rs0j33uK] JYoadS Vas 5200 pasnbai jou ascueieq - Al3jes  yiea / buisuad|
193yg aouerg . ;
JUSWIUONAUT 8Y) Ut 8auieg 8)es0}0akJ au1oads \p 5200 paiinba) jou adueeq - SjEST feiniinaLby)
JUBWILOHAUT
(8 XIONIddY) S8|duePlIl N0
lozo'o Iwiol
L/E10Z 10} WIBD LIS 1S4 SIPIUNWWIY 8y) JO 00 awweiboid|
ved se paAaiyde aq iw SIY) jey) pajedidiue st i e oz 1514 sanunwiwo ay) o} abeyoay Juswabeue mainay
JusiioNnAuT
(p2 XIGNIddY) uBisaq jeuopesiuebio
Irwi-o IvioL
1abpng aoiuas ulyim paqiosqe Aouaioy3 \¢ 0200 poddng ajes0)0auIq uyIm sassadsosd Juaund aujweans
1e6pnq adinas ulyim paquosge Asusiiy3 Va G200 puads 3jqeousnyul Ut uoRoNpPaY
186pnq asnuas uywm pagiosqe Acuapoy3 \» €100 SJUBHNSUOD JO 8Sn U} UojIoNpaY
TINd
JIGYAIIHOV 1¥vd NI G3AIIHOV 38 A3A3IHOY
1ON NI 319vAIIHOV 0L 43L93dX3 AQVIHTVY
AOJN3101443 ADN3101443 AON3IDIA43 AON3OI443
uopeuuojul (w3)
jueAdjal Jo430 JO snjeys uopisod Koueyay3 uopduassq Aduapy3
uopIsod Juaungd
uauns poddns 0) UopeWLIoUL JoylINg pajebpng
L yjuop
SepuspPy

Buiioyuow yebpng

Page 57



Page 58



anysitg g
U4 A IS

S YINOA U0 mhzmmw.a_
e ajedpnue jou op ap siseq Buwinsas e uo
mojaq Wws0'03 aus Jo wed Buueias Aq ABajess . -
YINOA 31 Jo ped Se passalppe uaaq Sey YoM Va leeoo SIONIOM BOJE JOHBS JO UOHINP3I - BNAIBS UINOA
mey) 18bpnq e pajessd Aousidyse siyL "paocnpal
uaaq Ajsnoiaad pey sieiom ease Joj jabpng ay )
Va 5200 saipuayye [euonesado
Bunuseey buote)]
{92 X1GN3ddy) ebuey edjases
£02°0 JvioL
aun) si e 1abpng
podsuei| ayj uo ainssald e ajedixue jou|
Op @M 'I3ASMOH “Siy) ULLUod o) Guobuo S oA .
‘panaiyoe aq uea ASUBISIYS BY) JO WOL0'03 AlUO \o 0£0°0 Husy 33ueySip g1 1sod jo mainay
1Y) sueaw euquwes Bajjon o) podsuel) spiaoid]
0} anufuod o) [esodoud ay) o} Juawpuawe 3y}
Wyt 03|
2jgeAaiyde JUNoWe pajeulis3 "paasiyoe Agnj
aq 0} A|ax) jou os[e s| A2uaiaye ay) ‘|Iaw 3q o) \f S/ZL0 safiieyo paseaidul - SadARS NS
pajoadxa jou 3. sjabie) awooul se Jnq paaibe
se AJenuer St ay) Uo PISEDIIUI SJaMm SHUE]
\r lLo00 aseaJou| sabseya anH - Aeign
Vs 1000 SaU4 - B0IAIDS bmb_._f
Bujuisay buojesy
(e£ XION3ddy) sebieyd g saed
Tind
JFI8VAIIHOV 1¥vd NI Q3A3IHOV 36 A3A3IHOVY
10N NI 3TaVAIIHOVY Ol a3103dx3 AQVIHTVY
3 43
AON3IOId AON3I01dd3 AONIIOIA43 AON3I01443
uofeuLIOUY (w3) p
u 25 U0
jueASjal Ja0 JO sMeys uopsod LORISOd JUSLING Aouapoiyg opdussag P
juaund yoddns 0y uopeULIOjU] JAYUNY pajebpng
L \puop
EETEEIRITE]

BULGHUGH 1bpng

Page 59



ASELIL
gLy A 1S

_«a-d Jviol
\o Ev00 aunjonuisay Wwea) Juawabeuepy ayeloloag
\r lezoo Aptsqns BuILIMS JO |BACIUD) - SOIAIDG BINSIT
"awn sy e 196png|
1904 stooyos ayj uo ainssaid e ajeddnue jou op| . 5npa1 1sod - M3IASI JIAIRS WUBY - 1D
A\ “MaaY |01 SIEIOAIOD U] Y POUIGWCD A 5200 uofjanpai § | IARRS WuBlY| - LI 11|
UB3Qq MOU SEU MIASY BAISG LD SI00UDS YL
‘apew
uaaq }a/ lou sey sunoy Buluado yeH Aluno) ay) 5200 S1S03 awipaAo / Abiaua
85131 0} UOISIO3P B8Y) Jeak sy jebpnq mm_.___umur e paonpas - sanoy Buiuado pasiaal leH Ajunod - saioed
8y} uo amssaud e J29dxa Jou op am ybnoyy
\f G100 MBIABS BINIONIIS - 3O [BUIY 7 JUBWBEUEY - SaNioey
"pasyin . .
£)iny 8q 0 pajoadxa S1 LORNQUIUOD (BLONIPPE SIY | N loso0) (€i/e/1 3D) %0S3 Y2eq BuipjoH - 32IA18G UINOA
Ve G000 uotjesteuoiies Guipjing - 33IAISS YINOA
\f 1100 sBuiaes s)so2 Buipiing - a2IAI8S YINOA
\¢ 12100 uoljeNBYU0ID) BINIDS - BJAIDS YINOA
“seak |e1pueuy syl Ul apew aq M w0003
Jo Buines e jey) pajedionue si i abels sy iv|
"papies aaey suojienobau ybnoy) pajusiwaiduwi Va 920'0 S1222U09 AjUo BWl} LA - BIIAIBS UINOA
uaaq 184 jou sey pue ABajens Yinos
ay) jo ued se paosnponun buaq s abueyd sk |
N4
JT18YAIIHOV 1Hvd NI 3A3IHOY 38 A3A3IHOVY
1ON NI 3T18VAIIHOV Ol g3103dx3 AQY3HTV
AON3|I01343 AON3IDI4d3 AONIIOIH4T AON3IO1343
uojjeunoju) (w3) p .
uopdpos oUBD
JUBA3)8J JALRO JO snjels uopisod uoRISOd JueLng Aouaoiug RAlIsSeq 919143
juauno pyoddns 0} uoeuuou} JeyN payebpng
L YJuol
S9PUBIPIT

BuiiGyiuop 3bpng

Page 60



ZEL'0

aviol

i A 45 hk«v

6 Xjpueddy - bujuiea] buojf]

\¢ ZEL0 (ssaqunu idnd) sjooyos ui abueyD aydeibowag
(62 XIONIddY) S8|dusidW 18I0
_Nee.c aviol
Ve 2£0°0 Mainay sIMIag Aeqr - SauRIGH)
Ve G100 JusLwaal 8jqIxeld - SeueIq
buurea buorain
(b2 XION3ddY) uBisaq jeuopesiuebiQ
_ag.c aviOoL
Ve fogo0 sa1ouBIos |euoyrIRdQ - 821AUBS LodSuel | jooYdS
. ‘sjuawaeid jo buuojuow pue sjuawsalbe
\¢ S8E0 yomawely ybnosyj uawainsosd paacsdu - Aunog 4o IO
Vs 1000 so1ueg Areiqry sy uiyim abejsod Jo uoljanpay
Buyuseey Buotayry
(92 X)IGNIddY) uewainaoid
ATEVAIIHOV 1Mvd NI Dwnwa_w_o< 39 J3A3IHOVY
10N NI 3T9VAIIHOV Ol a3103dx3 AQY3IATV
AON31013d3 AON3101J43 ADN3IDIZ43 AON310I1443
uopeuLIojul (w3)
JUBA3]8J JBLI0 JO snjels uopisod Koueoiyg uopduosaqg Aousjoyy3
juauns poddns 0) uopewnioyu] Jayung UoRISod Jusung pajyabpng
L yjuopy
s3jouaidya

Bupc)uoy jeBpng

Page 61



Page 62



Page 63

Jtoo0 TviO0L
\r LOO'O Buluueld Aouabiawg - peyaaes) abeapw ur uononpay
S89AIBS 8)8.40dI0D) - BMINIGXT JOID
(P XIGN3ddV) uBiseq jeuopesiuebip
lsvzo vioL
Va 2100 530188 1§ selddng
nd
JEVAIIHOV 1Hvd A3A3IHOY
10N N TTEVATIHOV | e oT 2al  AavaMTY
AON3IDI443 AON3I0I443 AONIIDIZ43 AON3IDI1443
uopeuULOjU| (w3) o p
jueAB{al JBYJ0 JO SNBJS uolisod Aouspdiyy UORAOSeQg AduSd]
uaund pyoddns 03 uopeuLIOjU} YN uofisod jualing pejepng
- Zpuon
y..wz.....:._z._ mo_.oc|20—tm.

s

Bupojuop yebpng



y.um zn—.:__ i
U TEREI

pr

sasueg 8]8jods00 - JONVNIL

2

\» [600°0 saoeg P seliddng
Va v00'0 AJUEYNSUOD PUB JHOM SSIAIBS
\' 000 alempiey - SIBAIBS aspdiowug
\o 12000 SUBSW DjUOJI3ID JO BSN BIONY - Jeded Bunsi
\e SL00 Auenem ypm AGojouyoa) mou - soueUIUEN dlempiel
\r 100°0 2in)puadxa W UoHINpa - SAIGEWNSUCD J3YI0
\r 000 sanuaseje( - sjuswanoidwy g Suoljeselly
\e 1000 suonnjos Buiuies} puno.e pyng - uononpas je6png Buines ]|
Va 1900 saoiuag pue sayddng
\e B8L0°0 uonenobaual eIA - SIS0 32UaJ PAONPeY
\f 0200 Fisco asueuaulew 8emyos - Sasu AIBUOEHU| JO 9IUBPIOAY
\r €100 51500 asemyos Aped piy) jo uonesijeuciiey
Va £00°0 aunypuadxg 19| peonpay
\v 000 %€ Aq puads ajqeausnjjul onpay
Tnd
JI8VAIIHOV lyvd NI G3AIIHOV 39 A3A3IHOV
1ON NI IGVAIIHOV 0L 03103dX3 AQV3IHV
AJN3IDI443 AJN3IDI443 AONIIDIH43 AON3IOI443
uopBuULIOUY (w3)
JuBASIaJ JBYIO0 10 SMIB}S uopsod Kouspyy uognduaseq Aduejoniy
yaund poddns 0) UORBULIOJU] JBYUNY uoisod aung pajafipng
Lijuopy
SopusdIIT

BupoHUGH] 18bpig

Page 64



\r 1000 sjoeAU03 4N J0 Buma) - scueualBLIEY aJlempIeH

. sjuawaasbe seyjo

\o 0100 y6nouy) paunoosd saau0l ososay - Buisuad asemyjos
\o {000 yusunsnipe 186png - Buisea|

\e 2000 uognios 11 Aq paiqeus uofionpal - Buliged 101

\o 2000 juswainsoid paonpal - alempie BupjiomiaN

\e 5200 Buswdinba Ajunoas msu 0} anp SISO TUSUIBW PIINPBY

\' L1000 SUO(INOS M3U BIA JUBWAINJ0I - 1abpng Buiuel

sa0iu8S 818100100 - SFDIAMIS HAWOLSND B LOI

\o 1000 asjuepuajie paosnpal - SaIN|0aYSIeULSS/SaduRIBaJu0)

\a 0L0°0 1abpng uo puewsp paosnpes - sauNsedN A1ajes askojdwg

\r 2000 Bupirom afibe aininj - suofonpal SjusWaA0LdW| / SUOHEISNY

Va 2000 uoRonpal S|S02 - BUPOA JUI0F

Va 0L00 seojues pue seyddng

\» £00°0 J3QUINU Ul LIOHINPR) - SUOHBYNSUOY SIUBPISEY / aaAoidwg

sadnuag 8)es0di0) - aANdax3 Jeud

(32 XIANIdd V) Wewaindoid

Tngd -
FAVAIIHOV 1dvd NI G3A3IHOVY 38 Q3A3IHOV
10N NI 319YA3IHOVY OL G3103dX3 AQv3adv
AJN3IOI443 AON3IOI443 AINIIONEST AON3IO1443
uopeuLojuy (w3)
jJUBAB{BI JBL0 JO SNJEYS Uopysod UOBSOd WALED Kouepy3 uopdpaseq fouepy)3
waund puoddns 0) uopeloju) Jeyung pajefpng

L Quol

E__,?.,c M, SepuopPIE
g Ay 37 [ - S83]A198 o) 5 BuLG) UG 18bpng

A

Page 65



lecso V101
. sasuemojje Ajjiqisuodsay |1e10ads Jo Jaquinu pacnpas
\» 0100 0} Pajull UOHONPaJ SUCHNGUIUCS IN - SBIUBMO|IY SIBQWIN|
. P3le30j|e JAGUINU JO UOHONP8)
\r 0£0°0 -~ SBOUBMOY|Y Alqisuodsay |e139dg - Seouemojly sJequiapy
eseasou|
\e 0100 Aseuoneyui ou - (33UBMOJlY JSBE) SSIUBMO|IY SISQUBIN
\r 0L00 obesn taded peonpal - SANAIES dljesoowag
$821488 8)400407 - DILYHIOWI '? T¥DIT
\e 5€0°0 suoijdo jJo mainal - S%98Yd gHD
S80IAI8S 8)es0dio0 - JO ¥ YH
\¢ €000 SUeING S210IOM paonpal - swiwo)) Aesodio)
S30IAIAS 8j8J0040) - aAINIAXT J8IYD
(9 XIGN3ddY) eBueyD sdjAleg
ls90'0 IVI0L
\r GL00 suaweasbe 9oL s 7 6uouelanuod - sead jeuss)xg
seoinss 9jes0dio] - 9iLvHOoW3d ® TvoT T
\o 7000 ywawdinba yasd Bulisoy woi) Wwodu) - SIdIAIBS HIOMIBN)|
\e 6100 saa) paseasout - siensibay|
saouuag 8jes0dio) - SIDIAYIS ¥IWOLSNO '? LOI
1200 S8UI XE | |IDUN0YD JO JBGUINU PISBAIDL - SBNUBASY
\o
seoiAIag 8jesodio) - JONVNI-
(2L XIGN3ddY) seBieyD g seo
Tnd
F8VAIIHOV 1yvd NI G3A3HOV 38 a3A3IHOV
10N NI 318VAIIHOV 0L a3103dx3 AQV3IHv
AON3I01443 AON3I101343 ADNIIDIEA3 AON3IOIdd3
uojjrULIOjU) (w3)
JuBAB{a1 JoL}0 10 Snje)s uofisod 804 JuauNg Kousioyy3 uopduaseq Aoueiyg
juaund pyoddns 0} uojpeuLIOjU) Jayun .= pejabpng
L Jyuoy

Aaysigg ) SepuePWI
HETTER RN W\ Bunoyuop 19bpng

wroars

Page 66



. juswabeuep
\ 090°0 SBIIoB - WEBJISHIOAA SJ9SSY Sainny saysjul 4
\r 1200 sabueyd ejnuwoy o} anp AAaT alt4 Ul uolONpay
\r 1200 HAN - sapuabunuos paonpay
\r ovZ'0 SJS02 JUSWI]SAAU] JJ0-aU0 - salauabuijuod paonpay
aoueu|-| 9)elodio)) ' fenua)
(82 XIAN3ddV) sapuepyl 8o
1
9Z°0 vioL
\r 091°0 MBIASY 18314 [BUIBJU| - SaININ AYSIuly
X sassasosd
\¢ coL’o paaoidusi pue Juawanoosd-3 - saining asysiulg
gaueu|-| ajeiodio) 9 [esusd
(9 XIGNIddv) Wawainsold
51070 wiol
\r 5100 uolNGLIUOD 0} uoonpal paaibe - WA Jeay) pAMID
aoueulH ajei0dio) P [enua)
(92 X1ON3ddY) abuey) asjasag
Ind
JIGVAIIHOV 14vd NI G3AIIHOY 39 A3A3IHOVY
1ON NI 379VAIIHOY OL g3103dX3 AQV3HTY
AONZIOI443 AON3IOI443 AONZIDI44T AON3IOI443
uopew.ou| (w3)
JueASjal JBL30 JO sSnjeys uopjsod uoRISod JusLIng Aduaidy3 uonduasaq Asusjouys
juaund poddns 0} uopewaOUl JBLYUNY : pajabpng

L Yjuon

Page 67



0L’0 aviol

Aausroye jo bunuyy . ~

o] $58558 ) UeNELBUN BYE] YoM PEREa] \» 00L°0 HIYS SuuUBYD WEBNSHIOA JBWO)SND) - S_INJNH aAYSIUNH
Aoauaioiya jo Bunuy . JOBJUCD JBWO)SND

ayj ssasse 0} uayepapun bujaq yiom pajiejaq \¢ 001°0 39B} 0] 89B) WEDISHIOAA JSWOISND) - Samnn4 aNysiul4
Aouaroiye jo Bunun . B

ay) ssasse 0] usyeyapun BUIag oM PayElsq \r 00170 D)UY 1IBIUOD WEBHSHIOAA JBWOISNY - SaInn{ anysjul4

uojeuLIOUL (w3)
uopdudsag Adusid
jueAdjal 41330 10 smels uogsod uoRISod JusLing Aduadyy RAdudsaqg 1Pu3
juaLINg poddns 0} uoewIoul JBYUNY pajabpng

L Yjuoln

Page 68



Agenda Item 6

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

DATE: THURSDAY, 16 JANUARY 2014

REPORT BY: HEAD OF FINANCE

SUBJECT: COUNCIL TAX REDUCTION SCHEME

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  The report is to explain the requirement for the Council to adopt the
Council Tax Reduction Scheme for 2014/2015 by 31% January 2014.

1.02 To seek any views from Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny
Committee in relation to the Council Tax Reduction Scheme for
2014/15.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 The Council Tax Reduction Scheme Report will be presented to
Cabinet on 21st January 2014. A copy of the report is attached at
Appendix A to this report

2.02 The recommendations from this Committee and Cabinet will be
reported to Council on 28th January 2014, when the Council will
formallly consider adoption of the Council Tax Reduction Scheme for
2014/15.

3.00 RECOMMENDATIONS

3.01  Members are asked to note the report and to make any observations
for consideration by Council, along with those from the Cabinet, in
adopting the Council Tax Reduction Scheme for 2014/15.

4.00 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

4.01 As set outin the report at Appendix A.

5.00 ANTIPOVERTY IMPACT

5.01  None directly associated with this report.

6.00 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

6.01  None directly associated with this report.

Page 69



7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None directly associated with this report.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None directly associated with this report.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

None.

APPENDICES

Appendix A - Council Tax Reduction Scheme 2014/2015 report.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Schedule 1B of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 (as inserted
by the Local Government Finance Act 2012)

The Council Tax Reduction Schemes and Prescribed
Requirements (Wales) Regulations 2013

Council Tax Reduction Schemes (Default Scheme) (Wales)
Regulations 2013

The Council Tax Reduction Scheme (prescribed requirements and
Default Scheme) (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2014

Contact Officer:  Jen Griffiths — Benefits Manager

Telephone: 01352 702929
Email: jen.griffiths@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 70



FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET
DATE: TUESDAY, 21 JANUARY 2014
REPORT BY: HEAD OF FINANCE
SUBJECT: COUNCIL TAX REDUCTION SCHEME
1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT
1.01  The report is to explain the requirement for the Council to adopt the
Council Tax Reduction Scheme for 2014/2015 by 31 January 2014
1.02 To recommend to Council to adopt the Council Tax Reduction
Scheme for 2014/2015 subject to any input from Corporate Resources
Overview and Scrutiny Committee.
2.00 BACKGROUND
2.01  The current Council Tax Reduction Scheme was adopted by Flintshire
County Council on 29" January 2013. The scheme regulations had
what is known as a “sunset clause” in them which made them valid
and legal for 2013/2014 only.
2.02 The Council Tax Reduction Scheme in Wales is set by Regulations
made under Schedule 1B of the Local Government Finance Act 1992
(as inserted by the Local Government Finance Act 2012). On 26"
November 2013, the Welsh Government approved the following
Regulations:
e The Council Tax Reduction Schemes and Prescribed
Requirements (Wales) Regulations 2013
e Council Tax Reduction Schemes (Default Scheme) (Wales)
Regulations 2013
2.03 These Regulations have been amended to reflect changes in Benefit
allowances and will be approved by Wales Government in Plenary on
14™ January 2014
e The Council Tax Reduction Scheme (prescribed requirements
and Default Scheme) (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2014
2.04  These Regulations prescribe the main features of the Scheme to be

Page 71



2.05

2.06

2.07

2.08

2.09

2.10

2.11

adopted by all Councils in Wales.

The Regulations for 2014/15 do not contain any significant changes
from the claimant’s perspective. Qualifying taxpayers may continue to
receive a reduction up to 100% of their Council Tax bill (depending on
the level of their income).

Although a National scheme has been approved, within the
Prescribed Requirements Regulations, there is limited discretion given
to the Council to apply additional discretionary elements that are more
generous than the national scheme and which provide for additional
administrative flexibility.

These are:

a) The ability to increase the standard extended payment period
of 4 weeks given to people after they return to work, when they
have been in receipt of a relevant qualifying benefit for at least
26 weeks

b) Discretion to disregard part or the whole amount of War
Disablement pensions and War Widows Pensions when
calculating income

c) The ability to backdate the application of Council Tax Reduction
awards for working age customers more than the standard
period of 3 months prior to the claim.

The Prescribed Regulations require the Council to adopt the Council
Tax Reduction Scheme by 31st January 2014, regardless of whether
it applies any of the discretionary elements. If the Council fails to
make or adopt a scheme, then a default scheme will apply under the
provisions of the Default Scheme Regulations. The Council can only
apply a discretion if it makes its own scheme under the Prescribed
Requirements Regulations.

Whether or not the Council wish to adopt any of the above
discretionary elements, it is obliged to carry out consultation on the
adoption of the scheme, even though the provisions were set by
Welsh Government.

Due to the tight timescales between making the Prescribed
Regulations and the 31st January 2014, the consultation has been
truncated in Flintshire between 27th November 2013 and 18th
December 2013.

The results of the consultation can be found at appendix 2
Following the arrangements for 2013/2014 the adoption of the Council

Tax Reduction Scheme for 2014/2015 is being considered by Cabinet
on 21st January 2014

Page 72



2.12

3.00

3.01

3.02

3.03

4.00

4.01

4.02

5.00

5.01

5.02

The recommendations from this Committee and Cabinet will be
reported to Council on 28th January 2014

CONSIDERATIONS

In 2013/2014 the Council adopted the discretions as set out in this
report and as detailed in Appendix 1 and it is recommended that these
continue.

It should be noted that there are no additional monies available from
Welsh Government to fund the discretionary elements. The projected
cost of funding these discretionary elements during 2013/2014 and
the estimated cost of funding these discretionary elements during
2014/2015 is outlined in Appendix 1 and is provided for in base
budget.

The Council continues to have the powers to support hardship on an
individual basis or in respect of a defined group, specifically within the
Corporate Debt Policy. Such arrangements cannot, however, form
part of the Council Tax Reduction Scheme itself.

RECOMMENDATIONS

To note the making of the Council Tax Reduction Scheme and
Prescribed Requirements (Wales) Regulations (“the Prescribed
Requirements Regulations”) by Wales Government on 26" November
2013. As amended by the Council Tax Reduction Schemes
(prescribed  Requirements and Default Scheme) (Wales)
(Amendment) Regulations 2014.

To recommend to Council to adopt the Council Tax Reduction

Scheme discretionary elements as outlined in Appendix 1, subject to
any input from Cabinet

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The Welsh Government’s estimate of the whole cost of the scheme at
this time last year was £222m, this was based on the intention to fund
90% of the scheme. Later a further £22m was paid to Council’s via a
specific grant, after a late decision was made by Welsh Government
to fund a 100% reduction (where applicable).

The cost of Council Tax Reduction needs to be managed within the

Council’'s budget. The amount identified by Welsh Government in the
Financial Settlement for 2014/2015 is £9.924 million.

Page 73



5.03

5.04

5.05

5.06

6.00

6.01

6.02

6.03

7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

8.01

The funding arrangements for 2014/15 include funding of up to 100%
of the estimated cost of the scheme based on the 2012/13 cost of the
Council Tax Benefit and therefore funding does not include the
2013/14 increase in Council Tax producing an immediate additional
shortfall of 3.14% including precepts. With the Council having a
responsibility to meet this shortfall in order to maintain the scheme at
100% reduction (where applicable).

The Council must also meet the cost applied as a result of 2014/15
Council Tax increases.

In addition to Flintshire’s initial estimates to maintaining the scheme at
100%, the Council are also liable for any fluctuations in caseload,
which is dependant on the economic climate.

Current projection as to the cost to the Authority is
2013/14 CTRS paid £10.200 million
2014/15 C.Tax increase 3.5% £ 0.357 million
(inc police and community councils)

Projected Cost £10.557million
WG Funding £9.924 million
Shortfall / pressure £0.633 million

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

The major reform of the welfare benefits system began to impact
residents from April 2014

The Welfare Reform Programme recognised the need for proactive
work and support to try to mitigate, as much as possible, the effects of
the changes on vulnerable residents in Flintshire and continues to
successfully deliver on this basis.

Residents may not only be affected by the changes to Council Tax
Support but may also be affected by other changes to other welfare
benefits which are happening at the same time.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None specifically associated with the content of this report.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

The Scheme proposed for 2014/2015 does not contain any significant
changes from the scheme which is currently in operation, other than
detailed in the recommendations above.

On this basis, following a rigorous and detailed Equalities Impact

Assessment being conducted on the introduction of the Scheme in
2013, there is no requirement to conduct a further assessment.

Page 74



9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

11.02

11.03

12.00

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None specifically associated with the content of this report.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

Yes, as below:
e Members of the Public
Flintshire County Council Elected Members
Members of Parliament and Assembly Members
Local Service Board Members
Advice Management Board Members
Office for Police and Crime Commissioner for Wales
Royal British Legion
Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

Due to the extent of the far reaching and detailed consultation
approach taken in 2012/13 in relation to the brand new Scheme it has
been agreed that a more targeted consultation approach would be
adopted for the Scheme for 2014/15.

The consultation period was 27" November 2013 to 18" December
2013 and a summary of the results of the consultation can be found at
Appendix 2.

Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 16™
January 2014

APPENDICES

Appendix 1 — The Discretionary Elements

Appendix 2 — Summary of the Public Consultation

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Schedule 1B of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 (as inserted
by the Local Government Finance Act 2012)

The Council Tax Reduction Schemes and Prescribed
Requirements (Wales) Regulations 2013

Council Tax Reduction Schemes (Default Scheme) (Wales)

Page 75



Regulations 2013

The Council Tax Reduction Scheme (prescribed requirements and
Default Scheme) (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2014

Contact Officer: Jen Griffiths — Benefits Manager
Telephone: 01352 702929
Email: jen.griffiths@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 76



Appendix 1 — Cabinet Report

The Discretionary Elements

There are three distinct areas of discretion within the Regulations and
Flintshire County Council proposes to exercise these as follows:

1.

Not to increase the “extended payment period” to more than four
weeks when an applicant starts work. This rule currently acts as a
good incentive measure under CTRS and it makes sense to maintain it
in line with the Housing Benefits (HB) Extended Payment rules, which
are also set at four weeks. This measure will result in approximately
£20,948 of expenditure in 2013/14

To continue to disregard all War Disablement and War Widows
Pensions as income. This measure will result in approximately
£32,284 of expenditure for 2013/14. Continuation of this discretion
would follow a long precedent and maintain the link with the Authority’s
treatment of this income for HB purposes.

To maintain the standard three month backdating provisions for
pensioners when a good reason for failing to claim earlier is shown.
This reflects the current position with regard to CTRS and HB and
payments in respect of backdating will result in approximately £29,375
of expenditure in 2013/14

Page 77



Appendix 2 — Cabinet Report
Summary of Public Consultation

The Consultation opened on 27 November and closed on 18 December 2013.
The survey was available publicly on-line via the Council’s website and was
emailed to a range of identified stakeholders. It was also available in hard
copy at public libraries, Flintshire Connects, Main Reception County Hall,
Benefits Reception County Hall, Phase Ill Reception County Hall and
Reception at County Offices Flint.
35 English responses were completed and 0 \Welsh responses.

Of the 35 responses received 34 were completed on-line and 1 via hard copy.
Local discretion 1

The Council proposes that the existing 4 week standard extended payment
should remain unaltered? Do you think this is reasonable?

The Council propoees that the axieting 4 week standard extended payment ehould remain
unaltered ?Do you think this is reasonable?

771 % [2T)

Yo o

If no, please tell us what you consider the period should be?

Page 78



Pleaze tell us what you consider the pericd should be?

is

Of the three people who responded other, two respondents provided the
following further information:

We feel that 4 weeks is generally sufficient time for an individual to
continue to receive a Council Tax reduction after commencing paid
employment. However we do feel that there should be a robust
mechanism in place to proactively identify individuals who are in debt
and/or facing financial difficulties despite finding employment. In these
cases there should be recourse for individuals to discretionary Council
Tax Reductions or other financial support for those who are facing
difficulties paying their Council Tax, despite being in paid employment
with earnings above the earnings threshold for Council Tax
Reductions. For example some individuals will have accrued debts
whilst unemployed that may result in a loss of heating or lighting to
their home; homelessness; inability to feed themselves; inability to
afford to travel to their workplace or other debts that cause not only
distress and anguish, but also physical health and wellbeing concerns.
In those situations individuals may require a longer period, in addition
to independent advocacy and support, to address their financial
difficulties before having to pay Council Tax. Consideration should also
be given to delays in notifying the Council immediately of a change in
circumstances, especially where this is due to not understanding their
responsibilities due to communication barriers or disability-related
barriers. In such circumstances retrospectively applying full Council
Tax liability could force an individual into poverty and debt through no
fault of their own.

Welfare reform changes to move benefit payments to calendar monthly
payments will already push recipients into financial hardship as they
will be paid a month in arrears, take 5 weeks to process (leaving them
without funds) and therefore simply returning to work and waiting 4
weeks will not give them ample time to really catch up with themselves

Page 79



Local Discretion 2

The Council proposes to continue to disregard all War Disablement Pension
and War Widows Pension income, as it is currently disregarded for CTRS. Do
you think this is reasonable?

The Council proposes to continue to disregard all of this income, as it $ currenly disregarded
for CTRS5.Do you think this is reasonable?

B8 % [26)

181 % (5)

If answering no, respondents were asked; “Please tell us what you think
would be reasonable?” and the following responses were received:

Nothing

To count it as part of their income

| think a £40.00 per week disregard would be reasonable

They have more disposable income than other households in order
to meet their costs. Therefore a standard disregard could apply to
the first £30 per week.

[ R I R A

Local Discretion 3

The Council proposes to keep the maximum backdate available to the 3
month statutory period. Do you think this is reasonable?

Page 80



The Cowncil proposes to keep the maximum backdate available to the 3 month statutory
period.Do you think this is reasonable?

T1.0% (28)

If ‘No’ please tell us what you would consider to be reasonable?

Please tell us whal pericd you would consider to be reascnable?

B menihe 12rmaatha O

Of the respondents who ticked other the following supplementary information
was provided:

[1 None

1 We strongly believe Council Tax Reductions should be able to
be back dated by 6 months if there are reasons for the delay,
such as bereavement, mental distress, a hospital or hospice
stay, caring for a family member, or disability-related barriers.

Page 81



The circumstances which have led an individual to claim Council
Tax Reduction can often be both complex and lead to situations
where an individual is struggling to access other entitlements
and to continue to afford housing, utilities, water, food and other
basic costs. In these situations there may be a delay in applying
for Council Tax Reduction, which should be accounted for and 3
months is not sufficient time in some cases. Similarly many
disabled people require additional time to complete forms either
due to limited energy or time to fill in forms or due to not
understanding the information or processes. Time limits can
often place these individuals under extreme stress and anxiety
and therefore any extension to backdating provisions, in order to
account for these barriers and to prevent people falling into
poverty and/or debt, is welcome. We would encourage Flintshire
County Council to ensure that all individuals applying for Council
Tax Reductions, any benefit, or any concern from the Council
are signposted to independent professional advocacy to ensure
that they are able to understand and complete forms accurately,
reducing administration costs for the Council and stress and
anxiety for the individuals applying. Accessible formats and
community language information, documents and forms should
also be proactively provided, including large print, Easy Read
and audio documents. This should be in addition to providing all
standard documents in Plain English and Cymraeg Clir as the
usual format.

There are many reasons why backdating is necessary and
limiting to 3 months is unfair in genuine cases

Page 82



Agenda ltem 7

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

DATE: THURSDAY, 16 JANUARY 2014

REPORT BY: HEAD OF FINANCE

SUBJECT: COUNCIL TAX AND BUSINESS RATE POLICIES
2014-15

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To provide Overview & Scrutiny members with details of an annual
report on Council Tax and Business Rate Policies proposed for the
financial year 2014-15 and to seek any observations to be made to
Cabinet.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01  Each year cabinet is required to re-determine a number of policies
associated with the collection and administration of Council Tax and
Business Rates.

2.02 Cabinet will be asked to consider and re-approve all existing policies
in January 2014.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01 As part of the considerations to re-approve the existing policies,
Overview & Scrutiny members may wish to make observations and
comments on the various policies.

4.00 RECOMENDATIONS

4.01 Members are asked to note the report and make any observations for
consideration by Cabinet which will be reported verbally to Cabinet on
21% January 2014.

5.00 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

5.01 As set out in the attached report.

6.00 ANTIPOVERTY IMPACT

6.01  None directly associated with this report.

Page 83



7.00

7.01

8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None directly associated with this report.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None directly associated with this report.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

None.

APPENDICES

Appendix A — Council Tax and Business Rate Policies Report

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

As set out in the report

Contact Officer: David Barnes, Revenues Manager
Telephone: 01352 703652
Email: david.barnes@flintshire.qgov.uk

Page 84



FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CABINET

DATE:

TUESDAY, 21 JANUARY 2014

REPORT BY: HEAD OF FINANCE

SUBJECT: COUNCIL TAX AND BUSINESS RATE POLICIES

1.00

1.01

1.02

1.03

2.00

2.01

2.02

2014-15

PURPOSE OF REPORT

Members are asked to approve various policies for the administration
of Council Tax and Business Rates for the financial year 2014-15

The policies required by statute to be approved each year are :-

e Council Tax Discounts on second and long term empty homes
(section 2)

e Council Tax Discretionary discounts (section 3)

e Business Rates Discretionary Rate Relief (section 4)

e Business Rates Discretionary Rate Relief for Small Businesses
(section 5)

Some policies are detailed for information purposes only, these are :-

e Payment dates for Precepting/Levying Bodies (section 6)
e Payment dates for Council Tax and Business Rates (section 7)

COUNCIL TAX ON SECOND AND LONG TERM EMPTY HOMES

Each year the Council is required to determine what discount, if any,
is awarded to second or holiday homes (known as Prescribed Classes
A or B) and long term empty properties (known as Prescribed Class
C). The prescribed Classes are :

Class A — A property which is unoccupied and furnished but
occupation is prohibited by law for over 28 days each year.

Class B — A property which is unoccupied but furnished and
occupation is not prohibited by law.

Class C - A property which is unoccupied and substantially
unfurnished beyond the normal exempt period (usually 6 months)

The current policy is not to award discounts to any Prescribed Class

and this applies to the whole of the County area. This is also reflected
in the 2014-15 Tax Base calculation.

Page 85



3.00

3.01

3.02

3.03

4.00

4.01

4.02

COUNCIL TAX DISCRETIONARY DISCOUNTS

In accordance with section 13A of the Local Government Finance Act
1992 (as amended by section 76 of the Local Government Act 2003),
the Council has a general discretion to reduce the amount of Council
Tax payable, effectively granting a local Council Tax Discretionary
Discount.

In exercising these discretionary powers the Council must act
reasonably having regard to all relevant considerations and the
interests of all tax payers as the cost of awarding a Discretionary
Discount would in effect be borne by other Council Tax payers.

The current policy is for the Head of Finance and Cabinet Member for
Corporate Management to consider discretionary discounts through
the use of delegated powers only in cases of civil emergencies and
natural disasters.

BUSINESS RATES - DISCRETIONARY RATE RELIEF

Discretionary Rate Relief for Charitable and Non Profit Making
Organisations is currently awarded on a continual basis, subject to a
minimum of 12 months and full financial year notice if any ratepayer is
affected by a change in policy.

Current policy is determined by the following categories :-

e Premises used for charitable purposes by organisations
specifically registered with the Charity Commission. (20%
discretionary 'top up' relief is awarded, with the exception of
shops operated by national organisations, who receive 80%
Mandatory Relief only).

e Premises used by non-profit making organisations that are
treated as charities, for the reason that they bear the same
characteristics as those organisations that are registered
charities. This category consists of Community Centres,
Institutes and Village Hall, other than those occupied by
Precepting Authorities. (20% 'fop up' relief is awarded)

e Premises occupied by sporting clubs, societies or other
organisations used for the purpose of non profit making and
used for the purpose of recreational, social welfare etc. (700%
Discretionary Relief is awarded with the exception of golf clubs,
which are awarded 50% Discretionary Relief)

Page 86



4.03

4.04

4.05

4.06

5.00

5.01

¢ Premises not covered by any of the above categories, occupied
by non-profit making organisations but are used for the benefit
of the community and who are assessed on an individual basis
based on their merits.(Up to 100% Discretionary Rate Relief
can be awarded)

Section 69 of the Localism Act 2011 amends section 47 of the Local
Government Finance Act 1988 to replace the limited circumstances in
which local authorities can currently give discretionary relief with a
power to grant relief in any circumstances.

This is subject to the condition that, except in the limited
circumstances specified, the local authority may only grant relief if it
would be reasonable to do so having regard to the interests of council
tax payers in its area. However, unlike other specific types of
discretionary rate relief as detailed in section 4.02 where the Welsh
Government substantially fund the cost of rate relief, the Council will
be responsible for fully funding any other discretionary discounts
granted

In exercising these discretionary powers the Council must act
reasonably having regard to all relevant considerations and the
interests of all tax payers as the full cost of awarding a Discretionary
Discount would in effect be borne by other Council Tax payers.

The Council must not have a blanket policy not to award discretionary
discounts and the recommended policy is that the Head of Finance
and Cabinet Member for Corporate Management consider any
applications received for discretionary discounts falling outside of the
scope of the policy in section 4.02 to be considered on their own
merits through the use of delegated powers using the following
criteria:-

e Requests for reductions will be required in writing from the
ratepayer or their appointed agents with a full business case
and documentary evidence in support of the request

e The Council’'s finances allow for a reduction to be made.

e |t must be in the interest of Council Tax payers for the Council
to grant such a reduction

e All other eligible discounts/reliefs have been considered and/or
awarded to the ratepayer

BUSINESS RATES - DISCRETIONARY RELIEF FOR SMALL
BUSINESSES

The Welsh Government Small Business Rate Relief scheme together
with the Government's recent announcement to extend rate relief on a
temporary basis up to 31*March 2015 provides rate relief, financed by
the Welsh Government.

Page 87



5.02

5.03

6.00

6.01

7.00

7.01

7.02

7.03

7.04

The Welsh Government Small Business Rate Relief scheme contains
provision to award discretionary 'top up' relief to small businesses
although the Council is required to meet the costs in full of any 'top-up'
awards.

The current policy is not to award additional discretionary 'top-up'
discounts to small businesses.

PAYMENT DATES FOR PRECEPTING/LEVYING BODIES

The following payment dates currently apply to Precepting Authorities
and Levying Bodies :-

e Sea Fisheries - 1st of April

e Police & Crime Commissioner — North Wales 12 payments on
15" day

e North Wales Fire Service - 12 payments on 15th day

e Town/Community Councils - 3 payments (April, August,
December)

PAYMENT DATES FOR COUNCIL TAX AND BUSINESS RATES

Council Tax and Business Rate customers are usually required to pay
their bills in line with a statutory instalment scheme over 10 months
from April to January.

Amendment regulations introduced by the Welsh Government provide
Council Tax customers with a statutory right to request to pay Council
Tax, from the start of the financial year, in 12 monthly instalments
rather than 10.

For Council Tax and Business Rate customers who choose to pay
their bills by Direct Debit, the Council offers customers a choice of four
dates, the 1st, 8th, 18th or 25th day of each month. Payment by
weekly direct debit is also promoted for payment of Council Tax only
and proves to be a useful way of helping customers who work to a
weekly income.

The Council will continue to offer alternative payment dates, including
payment over 12 months, to provide customers with a range of flexible
dates to suit individual finances and circumstances. These are :

1 annual instalment — due on 30t June

e 2 half yearly instalments — due on 31st May and 30t September

e 44 weekly instalments — due from 1st April to 31st January
(Council Tax only)

e 52 weekly instalments — due from 1st April to 31st March

(Council Tax only)

Page 88



8.00

8.01

9.00

9.01

10.00

10.01

11.00

11.01

12.00

12.01

13.00

13.01

14.00

14.01

15.00

15.01

RECOMMENDATIONS

Members are requested to consider continuation of the current
Council Tax and Business Rate Policies for 2014-15, as follows:-

Not to award Council Tax discounts on any prescribed class
and that this applies to the whole of the County area (2.02).

For the Head of Finance and Cabinet Member for Corporate
Management to consider section 13a discretionary discounts
through the use of delegated powers (3.03).

Discretionary rate relief for as set out (4.02).

For the Head of Finance and Cabinet Member for Corporate
Management to consider any applications for Business Rate
discretionary discounts not within the scope of the existing
policy as set out in 4.02 through the use of delegated powers
(4.06).

Not to award discretionary 'top-up' discounts to small business
(5.03).

Members are also asked to note the payment dates for
Precepting/Levying Bodies (6.01) and payment dates for
Council Tax and Business Rates, (7.01 - 7.04).

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

On the basis of a continuation of existing policies, costs will be
contained within the current budget.

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None.

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None.

EQUALITIES IMPACT

None.

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None.

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

None.

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

None.

Page 89



LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

e Local Government Finance Acts 1988 & 1992

e The Non Domestic Rating (Discretionary Relief) Regulations
1989

e The Council Tax (Administration and Enforcement)
(Amendment) (Wales) Regulations 2013

Contact Officer: David Barnes, Revenues Manager
Telephone: 01352 703652
Email: david.barnes@flintshire.qov.uk

Page 90



Agenda Item 8

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

DATE: THURSDAY, 16 JANUARY 2014

REPORT BY: MEMBER ENGAGEMENT MANAGER

SUBJECT: FEEDBACK FROM CONSIDERATION OF

IMPROVEMENT AND PERFORMANCE PLANS

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01  To provide the committee with feedback from the functional overview
& Scrutiny committees on the new approach to Improvement and
Performance plans.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 The new style Improvement Plan was adopted by Council in June
2013. It is aligned to the new, three year Outcome Agreement and
focuses on the priorities which are expected to have most impact. In
addition to the Improvement Plan Monitoring Report, there are bi-
annual performance reports from the Heads of Service. These are
similar to those previously producing for quarterly reporting.

2.02 The new style reports were presented to the Overview & Scrutiny
committees as follows:

Community Profile & Partnerships 7" November
Environment 13" November
Corporate Resources 14" November
Lifelong Learning 14™ November
Housing 20" November
Social & Healthcare 25™ November.

At each of those meetings, the committees were invited both to
consider the 2013/14 Mid Year improvement Plan Monitoring Report
and to comment on the newly introduced improvement plan
performance monitoring approach.

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01 At Community Profile & Partnerships, which was receiving a
performance report for the first time, it was suggested that

Page 91



3.02

3.03

3.04

4.00

5.00

6.00

7.00

8.00

a Members workshop be arranged to assist Members to scrutinise
and comment effectively on the newly introduced improvement plan
performance monitoring approach. This was agreed as the committee
resolution and has also been referred to at subsequent meetings.

At Environment, Corporate Resources and Lifelong Learning whilst
Members raised a number of questions about the content of the
reports, there were no specific comments which related to the new
approach to performance reporting.

At Housing, a member raised concerns at the format of the
improvement Plan Monitoring Report, particularly in the use of ‘low,
medium and high’ to classify likelihood and impact for target scores,
which he felt was not easy to understand. Other members of the
committee had supported him in his concerns.

At Social & Healthcare, there was a concern about joint working with
BCUHB and action planning and strategic direction. There was also
concern around the Mental Health and Dementia commissioning
strategies and the high level of dependency on partnership working
with BCUHB. It was agreed that these concerns should be brought to
the attention of the Corporate Resources O&SC, as these were risk
areas to be managed. Keeping up with the specialist demands, such
as the specific residential needs of those with dementia has created a
need for an agreed model of service delivery with an investment plan
n for the future. The continued ability to influence locality focuses
strategic planning with BCUHB had also been raised by CSSIW
during the 2012/13 annual review and evaluation of performance.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That the committee have regard to the observations of the Overview &
Scrutiny committees on the Improvement and Performance plans, and
if supported, forward these to the Cabinet.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

None arising directly from this report

ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None arising directly from this report

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None arising directly from this report

EQUALITIES IMPACT
None arising directly from this report

Page 92



9.00

10.00

11.00

12.00

PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None arising directly from this report

CONSULTATION REQUIRED

Publication of this report constitutes consultation

CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

None

APPENDICES

None

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

Contact Officer: Robert Robins
Telephone: 01352 702320
Email: robert_robins@flintshire.gov.uk

Page 93



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 94



Agenda Item 9

FLINTSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

REPORT TO: CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY
COMMITTEE

DATE: THURSDAY, 16 JANUARY 2014

REPORT BY: MEMBER ENGAGEMENT MANAGER

SUBJECT: FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME

1.00 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.01 To consider the Forward Work Programme of the Corporate Resources
Overview & Scrutiny Committee.

2.00 BACKGROUND

2.01 ltems feed into a Committee's Forward Work Programme from a number of
sources. Members can suggest topics for review by Overview & Scrutiny
Committees, members of the public can suggest topics, items can be referred
by the Cabinet for consultation purposes, or by County Council, or Directors.
Other possible items are identified from the Cabinet Work Programme and
the Strategic Assessment of Risks & Challenges.

2.02 In identifying topics for future consideration, it is useful or a 'test of
significance' to be applied. This can be achieved by asking a range of
questions as follows:

Will the review contribute to the Council's priorities and/or objectives?

Are there issues of weak or poor performance?

How, where and why were the issues identified?

Do local communities think the issues are important and is there any
evidence of this? |s there evidence of public dissatisfaction?

Is there new Government guidance or legislation?

Have inspections been carried out?

Is this area already the subject of an ongoing review?

PoNh=

No o

3.00 CONSIDERATIONS

3.01  Overview & Scrutiny presents a unique opportunity for Members to determine
the Forward Work Programme of the Committees of which they are
members. By reviewing and prioritising the forward work programme
Members are able to ensure it is member-led and includes the right issues.
A copy of the Forward Work Programme is attached at Appendix 1 for
Members' consideration which has been updated following the last meeting.

Page 95



400 RECOMMENDATIONS

4.01 That the Committee considers the draft Forward Work Programme attached
as Appendix 1 and approve/amend as necessary.

5.00 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

None as a result of this report.

6.00 ANTI POVERTY IMPACT

None as a result of this report.

7.00 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

None as a result of this report.

8.00 EQUALITIES IMPACT

None as a result of this report.

9.00 PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS

None as a result of this report.

10.00 CONSULTATION REQUIRED

N/A

11.00 CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN

Publication of this report constitutes consultation.

12.00 APPENDICES

Appendix 1 — Forward Work Programme

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION ACT) 1985
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

None.
Contact Officer: Robert Robins

Telephone: 01352 702320
Email: Robert.robins@Flintshire.gov.uk

Page 96



Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 2012/13

)6 9bed

DATE SUBJECT 0&S REPORT FROM
FOCUS
Monday 27™ | Introduction to the Budget workshop for all members This workshop replaces the
January ‘overview’ presentation which has
14.00 previously been given at the start
of each of the O&S budget
consultation meetings.
Tuesday 28" | Corporate Resources O&SC as part of the sequence of Consultation
January O&S budget meetings being held during the morning. The
11.45-12.45 | meeting will focus on corporate departments and corporate
finance.
Monday 3™ | ‘mop up’ and Capital Programme meeting for the Consultation
February | committee at the conclusion of the budget meetings. All
10.00 members will be invited to attend this meeting.
Thurs;hday Revenue Budget Monitoring 2013/14 Month 8 Monitoring HF
13
February | Assets as an Organisational Change strategy workstream
2014 (6 monthly update, as per the resolution of the committee Monitoring and development HAT
10.00 on 17/1/13)
Workforce Information Quarter 3 October - December 2013 | Monitoring HHROD
To provide Members with an update for the third quarter
2013/14
Forward Work Programme Development and confirmation MEM

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\8\0\5\Al100005508\$iirjomfw.doc Last printed 09/01/2014 10:01 AM

Page 1 of 2



Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee

FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 2012/13

Thursday | Revenue Budget Monitoring 2013/14 Month 9 Monitoring
13" March
2014 Procurement as a Flintshire Futures workstream (6 Monitoring and development
10.00 monthly update, as per the resolution of the committee on
17/1/13)
Forward Work Programme Development and confirmation
Thursday | Revenue Budget Monitoring 2013/14 Month 10 Monitoring
10™ April
2014
10.00 Forward Work Programme
T
g Thursday | Revenue Budget Monitoring 2013/14 Month 11 Monitoring
® 8" May
g 2014
o 10.00 Forward Work Programme
Thursday | Revenue Budget Monitoring 2013/14 Month 12 Monitoring
12" June
2014
10.00

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\8\0\5\Al100005508\$iirjomfw.doc Last printed 09/01/2014 10:01 AM

Page 2 of 2



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Improvement Assessment Letter from the Auditor General for Wales
	Enc. 1 for WAO Improvement Assessment Letter
	Enc. 2 for WAO Improvement Assessment Letter

	5 Revenue Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Month 7)
	Enc. 1 for Revenue Budget Monitoring 2013/14 (Month 7)

	6 Council Tax Reduction Scheme
	Enc. 1 for Council Tax Reduction Scheme

	7 Council Tax and Business Rate Policies 2014-15
	Enc. 1 for Council Tax and Business Rate Policies 2014-15

	8 Feedback from consideration of Improvement and Performance Plans
	9 Forward Work Programme
	Enc. 1 for Corporate Resources Forward Work Programme


